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EMAMI FRANK ROSS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 104" Annual Report of your Company together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31t March 2022.

The Directors are pleased to share with you that your Company has maintained sustainable growth and
earned profit in the financial year 2021-2022.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND PERFORMANCE
The performance of the Company for the year 2021-22 is stated below:

(X Lakhs)
Standalone Consolidated
PARTICULARS 2021 — 2022 2020 — 2021 | 2021 — 2022 2020 — 2021
Proflt/(Loss)‘ before Depreciation, Tax & 2479 19 (2834.79) 1573.70 (1269.76)
exceptional items
Less/(Add): Depreciation 2031.75 (2420.15) | 2031.75 (2420.15)
‘Proflt/(Loss) before Tax& exceptional 447 44 (5254.94) | (458.05) (3689.91)
1items
Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items 447 44 (5254.94) | (458.05) (3689.91)
and tax
Less: Provision for Taxation
Deferred Tax (85.16) (1431.20) | (85.16) (1431.21)
Wealth Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Excess)/Short Provision of Earlier 0.05 0.52 0.05 0.53
years
Profit/(Loss) for the year 532.55 (3824.26) | (372.95) (2259.23)
Other Comprehensive Income net of 1491 7269 1491 72,69
Tax
Total hensive I for th
y:a: Comprehensive Income for the | .\ ¢ (3751.57) | (358.03) (2186.53)
Credit Balance Brought Forward (6862.42) (3110.85) | (5920.68) (3734.14)
Adjustment to Equity = - - -
Fund available for appropriation (6314.99) (6862.42) (6278.74) (5920.68)
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (6314.99) (6862.42) (6278.74) (5920.68)
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The Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31t March,
2022 in terms of Section 129, 133 and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended)
(the “Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

» NATURE OF BUSINESS

Emami Frank Ross Limited is one of Eastern India’s largest and oldest pharmacy chain with
retail stores operation in West Bengal, Odissa, Karnataka and Tamil Nadu. Emami Frank
Ross Ltd has also initiated e-commerce pharmacy business, currently running in Kolkata
and nearby districts with the vision to serve the entire Eastern India and Karnataka in near
future.

Apart from just pharma, Emami Frank Ross Ltd also deals in several other product
categories including medical devices, personal care, baby care, health food & drinks, sexual
wellness, ayurvedic, herbal and natural products. The Company’s private label brand
“ROSSCARE” has already introduced more than 200 sku’s in the pharma and non pharma
categories and many of these products have been successfully launched.

> BUSINESS REVIEW/STATE OF COMPANY’S OPERATIONS AND INDUSTRY
SCENARIO

The Company runs pharmacy in name and style of “Frank Ross Pharmacy” and leisure business of books,
media, toys and stationery in the name of “Starmark” having retail outlets in Kolkata at South City, Mani

Square, City Centre, Quest Mall and in Chennai at Express Mall & Phoneix Mall.

The Company has shown considerable improvement in turnover which stands at Rupees 496 Crores for
the year ended 31.03.2022 as against Rupees 370 Crores in the previous year recording a growth of 33%.

Frank Ross pharmacy is planning to aggressively open new branches and doctor’s chambers in greater
Kolkata and in district town of West Bengal as well as in the neighbouring States of Bihar, Odissa,
Chattisgarh, North East etc. The Company has also started giving ‘Franchise’ rights to various parties in

all the above States.
» CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS IF ANY

There has been no changes in the nature of business of the Company.
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2. SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year, the Company has not changed its Share Capital and has also not issued any
Equity Shares with Differential rights, any Sweat Equity Shares and any Employee Stock Options. The
Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on 31 March, 2022 stood at ¥ 120,000,000 divided into
3,800,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each and 820,000 of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 100
each. The paid up share capital is ¥ 20,827,070.

3. DIVIDEND

The directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2021-2022 in view of carried
forward losses.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVE

The Company is not transferring any amount to General Reserve due to inadequacy of profits during the
financial year 2022.

5. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V “Acceptance of Deposits” by the
Company under the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.

6. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

In terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act and Rules framed thereunder, details of the loans given
and investments made by the Company have been disclosed as notes to accounts of the Financial
Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2022 which forms part of the Annual Report.

7. NON CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DEBENTURES

The Company allotted 150 unlisted senior secured redeemable non-convertible bonds having face value
of ¥ 1,00,00,000/- each aggregating to X 150,00,00,000/- on private placement basis of which 25% of issue
amount i.e. ¥ 37,50,00,000 was redeemed with the payment of interest at 12 percent per annum.

Further the Company allotted 220 unlisted senior secured redeemable non-convertible debentures
having face value % 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs) on Private Placement basis.

8. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

The particulars of material contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties
referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act in Form AOC-2 prescribed under the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 are appended as “Annexure — III” hereto and forms part of this Report.



ESTD. 1906

9. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year 2021-2022under review.

10. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE BEEN OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR AND THIS REPORT

There has been no material changes and commitments occurred during the above period affecting the
Financial position of the Company.

11. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Annual Return (Annexure I) for the Financial Year
ended 31.03.2022 is available and can be accessed from the website of the Company at
http://www.frankrosspharmacy.com.

12. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND THEIR
PERFORMANCE

In compliance with Ind AS 110, Your Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements, which
forms part of this Annual Report. Further pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing
the salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary in the prescribed Form AOC 1 is enclosed
in Annexure II and forms part of this report.

Further pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the financial
statements of the subsidiary in the prescribed Form AOC-1 (based on availability of data) enclosed as
Annexure- II has also been provided as a part of the report.

The Company does not have any Associate Company and Joint Venture,
13. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company is maintaining adequate internal financials control in line with the business and size of
the Company.

14. AUDIT AND AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2019, M/s. M/S Agrawal Tondon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the term of 5
consecutive years subject to ratification of the Members annually.


http://www.frankrosspharmacy.com/
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In view of the amendment made to Section 139 of the Act vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
which is effective from 7th May, 2018, annual ratification of appointment of statutory auditors is no more
necessary. Accordingly M/S Agrawal Tondon & Co., Chartered Accountants, shall continue to be the
Statutory Auditors of the Company till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the
year 2024 and their appointment shall not be subject to ratification by the Members annually.

A certificate under section 141 of the companies Act, 2013 has been received form M/S Agrawal Tondon&
Co Associates to the effect that they are eligible to be appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company.

The reports given by the Auditors on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022 forms part of this Annual Report and there is no qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Reports. The Auditors of the
Company have not reported any fraud in terms of the second proviso to Section 143(12) of the Act.

15. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder & other
applicable provisions if any, the Company has appointed Mr. Sandip Kumar Kejriwal, Practicing
Company Secretary, as its Secretarial Auditor to undertake Secretarial Audit for theFinancial Year
Ending 31.03.2022. The Secretarial Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year ending 31.03.2022 is attached,
which is self-explanatory (vide Annexure-V)

16. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has mandated Secretarial Standards -SS-1, SS-II and SS-III with respect
to Board Meetings, General Meetings and Payment of Dividend respectively. The Company is in
compliance with the same.

17. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/COURTS AND
TRIBUNALS

There is no significant and material order passed by Regulators/Courts/Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

18. DELISTING

The Company’s equity shares were listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and listing fees for
the year 2021-2022 was paid. The Company had opted for voluntary delisting under the Regulation 8(1)
(d) of the SEBI (De-Listing of Equity Shares) Regulation 2009 as amended in the year 2015 & 2016 and it
has duly received the in principal final approval from the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited for delisting
of equity shares of the Company vide their letter reference number CSE/LD/15489/2022 dated 25 March,
2022.Hence Your company has got delisted from the official list of the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
consequent upon the approval of delisting by the Exchange under SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations 2021 w.e.f. 28" March, 2022.
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by Board and is also
subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures have been also formulated
and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD MEETING AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A) Changes in Board Composition

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified for being appointed as Directors, as specified in
section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules applicable thereof. Details of changes in the Board
Composition during the year 2021-2022under review are as under:

SL. |NAME OF THE | DESIGNATION | REASONS AND DATE OF
NO. | DIRECTORS & CATAGORY | APPOINTMENT/RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT
1 Mrs.Karabi Sengupta | Independent Appointed as an additional director w.e.f. October

(DIN: 02534951) Director 19%, 2020 to hold office upto the date of the 103

Annual General Meeting and further appointed as
an Independent Director w.e.f. 28" September,

2021
2 Mr. Pramod Kumar | Independent Reappointed for second term w.e.f 14" August,
Shah Director 2021 and approval of shareholders taken on 28"
(DIN: 00343256) September, 2021
3 Mr. Anurag Jatia Whole time | Reappointed as Whole time Director from 01+
(DIN: 01184328) Director April 2021 to hold office up to the date 31#March,

2024 and revision of remuneration with the
approval of shareholders on 103" Annual General
Meeting to be held on 28t September, 2021.

DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT/CHANGES:

a. Retirement by rotation and reappointment of Whole time director

The Consent of Shareholders is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for continuation of
holding of office by Mr. Anurag Jatia, Whole Time Director of the Company who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for reappointment. Your Directors recommend his reappointment.

b. Retirement by rotation and reappointment of whole time director
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The Consent of Shareholders is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for continuation of
holding of office by Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj, Whole Time Director of the Company who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. Your Directors recommend his reappointment.

B) Declaration by Independent Director(s)

The Board of Directors hereby certify that the Independent Directors appointed on the Board meet the
criterias pursuant to section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013.

Further the Company has received Declaration of Independence from the Independent Directors Mr.
Debasish Bhaumik (DIN 06933306), Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah (DIN 00343256) & Mrs. Karabi Sengupta
(DIN: 02534951) on 01.04.2022 and the same has been placed before the Board & taken on record.

C) Board Induction, Training and Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors.

Prior to the appointment of Independent Directors, the Company sends the formal invitation along with
the detail about the profile of Company, Board and other relevant information to the Independent
Directors and also explains them about the compliances required from him/her as a director under the
provisions of Companies Act 2013, Code of Conduct of Company, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2011, before appointing them. At the time of appointment, the Company issues a Letter of
Appointment to the Independent Directors explaining them their terms of appointment, commitments,
role & duties etc. The Directors, upon appointment, are formerly inducted in the Board and they are
updated periodically about the Financials & other information of the Company. The Company Secretary
briefs the Directors about their legal and regulatory responsibility on a periodical basis.

D) Number of meetings of the Board of Directors

5(Five) Board meetings were held during the financial year 2021-2022 on the following dates:

SL. No. Date of the meeting No. of Directors attended the meeting
1 11.06.2021 7
2 28.06.2021 7
3 14.08.2021 7
4 12.11.2021 7
5 11.02.2022 7

The maximum gap between two Board Meetings was less than 120 days as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Disclosure indicating number of Board & Committee meetings attended by each director as per
Secretarial Standard 1 is detailed in Annexure (enclosed as Annexure IV)

E) Audit Committee
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The Board has formed the audit committee vide its meeting dated 30.05.2014 and thereafter due to change
in directorship the Audit Committee has reconstituted on 25.07.2014. As on 31t March, 2022 Mr. Pramod
Kumar Shah (Chairman), Mr. Anurag Jatia, & Mr. Debasish Bhaumik are members of the Audit
Committee. All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate. The Chairman of the
Committee is an Independent (Non-Executive) Director, nominated by the Board. The company
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are
circulated to the Board, discussed and taken note. All recommendations made by the Audit Committee
during the year were accepted by the Board.

Atleast one meeting of the Audit Committee was held in every quarter of the financial year ended March
31¢, 2022 and the time gap between any two consecutive meetings of the Audit Committee did

not exceed 120 days. During the financial year from 1% April, 2021 to 31 March, 2022, 5(Five) Audit
Committee Meetings were held. The dates on which the meetings were held are as follows and the same
were attended by all the members:

11* June 2021; 28 June, 2021; 14" August, 2021; 12** November, 2021&11* February 2022.

F) Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Company's Policy on Directors' Appointment and
Remuneration

The Board of directors of the Company was constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee in
terms of the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act read with Rule 7 of companies (Meeting
of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 Act and Rules framed thereunder read with Regulation 19 of the
Listing Regulations. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Debasish
Bhaumik(Chairman), Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah& Mrs. Karabi Sengupta as the members of the
Committee. The Committee has formulated the policy with respect to remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

During the year ended 31.03.2022, 2 (Two) meetings of Nomination & Remuneration Committee were
held on 14" August, 2021 and 11" February, 2022and all the Committee members were present in these
meeting.

The policy is laid down as follows:

I.  The Nomination and Remuneration committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every
director’s performance.

II. The Nomination and remuneration committee shall formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a
policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees.
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III. At the time of appointment or reappointment, the Managing Director, other Whole Time
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel shall be paid such remuneration as may be agreed
mutually between the company (which includes the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and the Board of Directors) and the Managing Director, other Whole Time Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel which should be within the overall limits prescribed as per Companies Act,
2013.

IV.  The Remuneration shall be subject to the approval of Members of the Company in General
Meeting it falls under the criteria of Schedule V of the Companies Act.

V.  In determining Remuneration, the Committee shall consider the following:

a. The level & composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract and motivate
Managing Director, other Whole Time Directors or Key Managerial Personnel.

b. Relationship of remuneration & performance benchmark is clear.

c. Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to time working of the company and its goals.

G) Share Transfer Committee

The Board has formed the Share Transfer Committee vide its meeting dated 14.08.2017. As on 31%t March,
2022Mr. Debashis Bhaumik (Chairman), Mr. Gautam Jatia, &Mr. Anurag Jatia are members of the Share
Transfer Committee.

1 (One) Share Transfer Committee Meeting was held on 17 March, 2022 during the financial year 2021-
22 and all the Committee members were present in the meeting.

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

To strengthen its policy of corporate transparency, the Company has established an innovative and
empowering mechanism for employees. Employees can report to the management their concerns about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code of conduct or ethics

policy.

During the year ended 2021-2022, the Company has not received any complaint of fraud or violation
under Vigil Mechanism.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance as well
as of its Committees and individual Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration committee carried
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out the exercise of evaluation of all Directors through a structured evaluation process covering various
aspects of the functioning of Board and the composition of the Board & committees, experience &
competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, governance issues etc. Independent
Directors were additionally evaluated on criteria like independence of views and judgment. The
Independent Directors of the Company in their separate meeting, reviewed the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and of the Chairperson of the Company.

The Board, after taking into consideration the evaluation exercise carried out by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and by the Independent Directors, carried out an evaluation of its own
performance and that of its Committees. The individual performance of all Directors (including the
Independent Directors) was also carried out by the entire Board (excluding the director being evaluated).
The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation process and results thereof, which reflected the overall
engagement of Board and its Committees with the Company.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 a separate meeting
of the independent Directors of the Company was held on 14* August, 2021 to review the performance
of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. The independent Directors also reviewed the
quality, content and timeliness of flow of information between the Management and the Board and its
committees.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND THE RULES MADE THEREUNDER:

Sr. | Particulars Name of the Directors and KMP (s) Ratio
(1) The ratio of the | Name of the Directors: Ratio:
remuneration  of  each
director to the median | Mr. Gautam Jatia 38:1
remuneration of the | Mr. Anurag Jatia 21:1
employees of the company | Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj 26:1
for the financial year Mrs. Chadaravalli Srinivasa Bhatta Nalini 13:1
(ii) | *Percentage increase in | Mr. Gautam Jatia — Managing Director& CEO 14%
remuneration  of  each | Mr. Anurag Jatia — Whole Time Director 7%
director and CEO, CFO & | Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj — Whole time Director 10%
CS in the financial year Mrs. Chadaravalli Srinivasabhatta Nalini — Whole Time | 11%
Director
Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Agarwal - Chief Financial | 7%
Officer(Resigned w.e.f. 31t March 2022)
Ms. Amrita Bhattacharya-Company Secretary 6%

10
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(iii) | *Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 11%

(iv) | Number of permanent employees on the rolls of company 1733

(v) | *Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees other than the | 9%
managerial personnel

(vi) | Affirmation The Board affirms that the remuneration is as per | --------

the remuneration policy of the company

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 (14) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Managing Director or Whole-Time Director(s) of the Company were not in receipt of any
remuneration or commission from the Company's Holding or Subsidiary companies during the financial
year.

EMPLOYEES AND OTHER REPORT

None of the employee is in receipt of remuneration in excess of amount as prescribed in the Rule No. 5(2)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that every woman employee
is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero tolerance towards sexual harassment and any
act of sexual harassment invites disciplinary action for which committee has formed.

The Company has established a policy against Sexual Harassment for its employees. The Policy allows
every employee to freely report any such act and prompt action will be taken thereon.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal ) Act, 2013
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility has become applicable to the Company w.e.f. 1st April,
2022. Necessary action will be taken to constitute a CSR committee and frame CSR policy soon.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, related to conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable
to the Company as there has been no manufacturing activity.

11
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Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Foreign exchange earned during the year : NIL

Foreign exchange used during the year

Purchase (Imports) : ¥17.08 Lakhs
Product Listing : NIL
Travelling (Boarding & Lodging) : NIL
Total : ¥17.08 Lakhs

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors wish to inform members that the Audited Accounts containing Financial Statements for

the year 2021-2022 are in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. They believe

that the Financial Statements reflect fairly, the form and substance of transactions carried out during the
year and reasonably present the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

Pursuant to the requirements of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors further confirm

that:

i)

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of
the Company for that period;

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

12
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APPRECIATION

The directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the company’s employees for their enormous
personal efforts as well as their collective contribution to the company’s performance. The directors
would also like to thank shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and all other business associates for
the continuous support given by them to the company and their confidence in its management.

For and on behalf of the Board

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Whole time Director
(DIN 00604926) (DIN 08818352)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23"August, 2022

13
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

1. Industry Structure & Development

In the recent Union Budget of 2022, the pharma industry of the country was recognized as the “sunrise
sector” for India's economy and is expected to grow threefold over the next decade. As per the Economic
Survey of 2021-2022, the Indian pharmaceutical industry is expected to reach $65 billion by 2024.

Covid-19 vaccine production is likely to remain high in the coming years, as a large share of the global
population has not yet been vaccinated. Any emergence of new virus variants would require additional
rounds of booster vaccinations.

According to the Indian Economic Survey 2021, the domestic market is expected to grow 3x in the next
decade. India’s domestic pharmaceutical market stood at US$ 42 billion in 2021 and is likely to reach US$
65 billion by 2024 and further expand to reach US$ 130 billion by 2030. India's biotechnology industry
comprises biopharmaceuticals, bio-services, bio-agriculture, bio-industry, and bioinformatics. The
Indian biotechnology industry was valued at US$ 70.2 billion in 2020 and is expected to reach US$ 150
billion by 2025. India’s medical devices market stood at US$ 10.36 billion in FY20. The market is expected
to increase at a CAGR of 37% from 2020 to 2025 to reach US$ 50 billion. As of August 2021, CARE Ratings
expect India's pharmaceutical business to develop at an annual rate of ~11% over the next two years to
reach more than US$ 60 billion in value

The following are the facts for the growth of Pharmaceuticals industry:

High Economic Growth in healthcare and medicine;

Foreign Direct Investment inflows in the Indian Drugs & Pharmaceuticals sector;
Low cost Production and R&D boosts efficiency in Indian pharma companies; and
Increased Pharma Export.

YV VYV

In June 2021, Hon’ble Finance Minister Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced an additional outlay of Rs.
197,000 crore (US$ 26,578.3 million) that will be utilised over five years for the pharmaceutical PLI scheme
in 13 key sectors such as active pharmaceutical ingredients, drug intermediaries and key starting
materials.

In the global pharmaceuticals sector, India is a significant and rising player. India is the world's largest
supplier of generic medications, accounting for 20% of the worldwide supply by volume and supplying
about 60% of the global vaccination demand. The Indian pharmaceutical sector is worth US$ 42 billion
worldwide. In August 2021, the Indian pharmaceutical market increased at 17.7% annually, up from
13.7% in July 2020. According to India Ratings & Research, the Indian pharmaceutical market revenue is
expected to be over 12% Y-o-Y in FY22.

14
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INVESTMENT & RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
The FDI inflows in the Indian drugs and pharmaceuticals sector reached US$ 19.41 billion between April
2000 -March 2022.

The Union Cabinet has given its nod for the amendment of the existing Foreign Direct Investment (FDI)
policy in the pharmaceutical sector in order to allow FDI up to 100% under the automatic route for
manufacturing of medical devices subject to certain conditions.The Indian Pharmaceuticals industry
plays a prominent role in the global pharmaceuticals industry. India ranks third worldwide in terms of
production by volume and 14th by value.

In this regard the sector has seen a lot of investments and developments in the recent past:

>

The Indian drugs and pharmaceuticals sector received cumulative FDIs worth US$ 19.41 billion
between April 2000-March 2022 reached USD during the year 2021-22.

The foreign direct investment (FDI) inflows in the Indian drugs and pharmaceuticals sector
reached US$ 1,414 million between in FY 2021-22.

The Indian pharmaceutical industry generated a trade surplus of US$ 15.81 billion in FY22.
In May 2022, Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories enters into exclusive partnership with HK inno.N
Corporation to commercialise novel molecule Tegoprazan in India & select emerging markets.

In April 2022, Dr Reddy's Laboratories Ltd. inked a pact with MediCane Health to announce the
launch of medical cannabis products in Germany.

The Union Cabinet has given its nod for the amendment of existing Foreign Direct Investment

(FDI) policy in the pharmaceutical sector in order to allow FDI up to 100% under the automatic
route for manufacturing of medical devices subject to certain conditions.

15
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» In March 2022, Themis Medicare Ltd. (Themis), announced the approval of its antiviral drug
VIRALEX by the Drug Controller General of India (DCGI).

> The National Digital Health Blueprint has the potential to generate nearly US$ 200 billion in
added economic value for India's healthcare industry over the next 10 years.

» In September 2021, the Indian government contributed US$ 4 billion to the pharmaceutical and
medical industries.

2. SWOT ANALYSIS
Each industry in any country has its own strength for its development and weakness. The pharma
industry is not an exception to this. The pharma industry in India is also having certain factors on
strength and weakness.

> Strength& Weakness

Pharmaceuticals demand in emerging markets is set to increase due to improvements in healthcare
systems and growing disposable household incomes. Generics and OTC drug producers will be the first
to benefit from this development. High economic growth along with increasing penetration of health
insurance to push expenditure on healthcare and medicine in India.

> Opportunities& Threats:

E-pharmacy, e-diagnostics and e-healthcare are still at developing stage In India, government’s Digital
India Initiative may act as a driving force for growth of Pharmaceutical Industry in India.

Our Company’s strategy is designed to use digital technology network by way of providing benefits to
customers like

e Availability to order medicine via Call Center platform

e Monthly reminders for Medicine

e Digital payment facility to customers

e Proper Home delivery, ambulance facility as well as complaint redressal customer service facility

3. Future Outlook

Medicine spending in India is projected to grow 9-12% over the next five years, leading India to become
one of the top 10 countries in terms of medicine spending. Going forward, better growth in domestic
sales would also depend on the ability of companies to align their product portfolio towards chronic
therapies for diseases such as cardiovascular, anti-diabetes, anti-depressants and anti-cancers, which are
on the rise. The Indian Government has taken many steps to reduce costs and bring down healthcare
expenses. Speedy introduction of generic drugs into the market has remained in focus and is expected to
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benefit the Indian pharmaceutical companies. In addition, the thrust on rural health programs, lifesaving
drugs and preventive vaccines also augurs well for the pharmaceutical companies.

4. Internal Control System and its adequacy

The Company has proper internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of Business.
During the year the Company has appointed Saraf& Chandra LLPas Internal Auditors & also to perform
professional services towards Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting.

*Source/Reference taken for all above statistical data is
Consolidated FDI Policy, Press Information Bureau (PIB), Media Reports, Indian Pharmaceuticals
Industry

For and on behalf of the Board

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Whole time Director
(DIN 00604926) (DIN 08818352)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23"August, 2022
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Annexure 11
Form No. AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate
Companies/Joint Ventures
Subsidiary Details as on- 31.03.2022

(Rupees in Lakh)
No. | Particulars Details
1 Name of Subsidiary Lyfresh Private Limited
Date since when the Subsidiary was acquired 11.07.2017
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if | NA
different from the holding company’s reporting period
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date | NA
of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
5 Share capital 600.00
6 Reserves & surplus (599.98)
7 Total assets 1.91
8 Total Liabilities 1.89
9 Investments -
10 | Turnover 1.13
11 | Profit before taxation 256.06
12 | Provision for taxation -
13 | Profit after taxation 256.06
14 | Proposed Dividend -
15 | % of shareholding of Holding Company 100%
For and on behalf of the Board
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Whole time Director
(DIN 00604926) (DIN 08818352)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 234 August, 2022



Annexure 111
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into
by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship NA
Nature of contracts /arrangements /transactions NA
Duration of the contracts / arrangements /transactions NA
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any NA
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NA
date(s) of approval by the Board NA
Amount paid as advances, if any: NA
Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section | NA

188




2A. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

with Director(s)/Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Relatives

Description (1) (2) (3) 4) (5)

Name of the related party and nature of | Mr. Rajendra | Mr. Gautam Jatia- | Mr. Anurag Jatia- | Mr. Sujoy | Mrs.

relationship Kumar Jatia- | Managing Director Whole Time Director | Chattaraj- Chadavalli
Relative of Whole  Time | Srinivasabhatt
Directors Director a Nalini

Nature of Contracts / 1. Sale of Goods | Sale of Goods Sale of Goods Sale of Goods | Sale of

arrangements/transactions 2. Act as a Property
consultant

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ | Yearly Yearly Yearly Yearly Based on the

transactions Agreement

Salient terms of the contracts or Sale of Goods to | Sale of Goods to the | Sale of Goods tothe | Sale of Goods | Sale of

arrangements or transactions including the Party Party Party to the Party Property

the value, if any

Justification for entering into such Regular Business | Regular =~ Business | Regular =~ Business | Regular Sale of

contracts or arrangements or Activity Activity Activity Business Property

transactions Activity

date(s) of approval by the Board 11t% June, 2021 19t April, 2022 19t April, 2022 19t April, 2022 | 14" August,

2021

Amount paid as advances, if any: No No No Yes Yes

Date on which the special resolution was | 28th September, | NA NA NA 28th September,

passed in general meeting as required | 2021 Special 2021  Special

under first proviso to section 188 Resolution  for Resolution for
appointment as Sale of
consultant Property

2B. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis with

Other Parties

Description

€))

)

©)

Name(s) of the related party
and nature of relationship

Suraj Finvest Pvt.Ltd. (Formerly Known
as Sneha Gardens Pvt. Ltd.)

Sneha Enclave Pvt. Ltd.

Midkot Investment Private Limited

Nature of contracts

Guarantor against the Bank Loan,

Guarantor against the Bank Loan,

Guarantor against the Loan

/arrangements /transactions Debenture/Bonds & Misc. Expenditure Debenture/Bonds & Misc.
Expenditure
Duration of the contracts / Yearly Yearly Yearly

arrangements /transactions

Salient terms of the contracts
or arrangements or
transactions including the
value, if any

Commission Paid to the party against
Guarantee provided for securing Bank
Loan and issue of Non-Convertible
Debentures/ Bonds

Commission Paid to the party
against Guarantee provided for
securing Bank Loan and issue of

Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds

Commission Paid to the party against
Guarantee provided for issue of Non-
Convertible Debentures/Bonds




Justification for entering into For availing Loan from Banks and for For availing Loan from Banks and for For issue of Non-Convertible
such contracts or issue of Non-Convertible issue of Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds
arrangements or transactions Debentures/Bonds Debentures/Bonds
date(s) of approval by the 19t April, 2022 19t April, 2022 19t April, 2022
Board
Amount paid as advances, if No No No
any:
Date on which SR passed in NA NA NA
general meeting as required
under first proviso to Section
188
For and on behalf of the Board
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

Managing Director
(DIN 00604926)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 234 August, 2022

Whole time Director
(DIN 08818352)




Annexure IV

Detail of Board Meetings & Committee Meetings indicating number of meetings attended by each director as per
Secretarial Standard 1

L Board Meetings
SL Date of Gautam Jatia Anurag Chadaravalli | Sujoy Chattaraj Pramod Debasish Karabi
Meeting Jatia Srinivasa Kumar Shah Bhaumik Sengupta
Bhatta Nalini
1 11.06.2021 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
2 28.06.2021 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
3 14.08.2021 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
4 12.11.2021 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
5 11.02.2022 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
II. Audit Committee Meetings
SL Date of Meeting Pramod Kumar Shah Anurag Jatia Debasish Bhaumik
1 11.06.2021 Y Y Y
2 28.06.2021 Y Y Y
3 14.08.2021 Y Y Y
4 12.11.2021 Y Y Y
5 11.02.2022 Y Y Y
III. Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting
SL Date of Meeting Pramod Kumar Shah Debasish Bhaumik Karabi Sengupta
1 14.08.2021 Y Y
2 11.02.2022 Y Y
Y= Meeting attended N= Meeting not attended NA= Not Applicable
For and On behalf of the Board
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

Managing Director
(DIN 00604926)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23 August, 2022

Whole time Director
(DIN 08818352)




Annexure V
FORM NO. MR - 3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31° MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Emami Frank Ross Limited

CIN: L24232WB1919PLC003123

7, Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Kolkata-700013, West Bengal

I have conducted Secretarial Audit of compliance with the applicable statutory provisions
and adherence to good corporate practices by Emami Frank Ross Limited, CIN:
L24232WB1919PLC003123 (hereinafter called ‘the Company’) for the Financial Year ended
31" March, 2022. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our

opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books and papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2022 complied with statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting

made hereinafter.

I have examined the books and papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2022according

to the provisions of:



(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA") and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings — Not applicable for External Commercial Borrowings as there
was no reportable event during the financial year under review;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 — Not applicable as there was no reportable event during
the financial year under review;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021- Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the
financial year under review;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 — Not applicable as the Company as there was no reportable event
during the financial year under review;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client — Not
applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agent during the financial year under review;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009;



(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 —
Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year under review;
and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(vi) Management has identified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically
applicable to the Company:

(a). The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940;
(b). Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and Rules 2011 with allied rules and Regulations;

(c). Narcotic Drugs & Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General
Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with CSE Limited.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to our observations

given below:

Where a company has one or more subsidiaries or associate company, it shall, in addition to
financial statements provided under sub section (2), prepare a consolidated financial
statement of the company and of all the subsidiaries and associate companies in the same form
and manner as that of its own and in accordance with applicable accounting standards, which
shall also be laid before the annual general meeting of the company along with the laying of
its financial statement under section (2) vide section 129(3) of the Companies Amendment Act,
2017.

As indicated in the Annual Audited Accounts for the year 2020-21 due to non-
finalization of the Financial Statements of its Subsidiary Company Viz. Lyfresh Pvt.
Ltd., the Company could not place the Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)
before its last AGM held on 28.09.2021 for adoption of the shareholders.

I further report that:

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors including a Woman



Independent Director. Changes in the composition of Board of Directors that took place
during the year under review, were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act;
2013

(ii) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule Board Meetings; agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting;

(iii) All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried through

unanimously.

I further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company
and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and
taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the opinion there are
adequate systems and processes in place in the Company which is commensurate with its
size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines; and

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various
statutory / regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures,

wherever found necessary.

I further report that during the financial year under review, following events/ actions
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred Laws,

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., have occurred:

The Calcutta Stock Exchange has approved voluntary delisting of the equity shares of the
Company w.e.f. 28 March,2022 under The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 vide its Letter No.CSE/LD/15489/2022 dated
25 March,2022.Consequently,the Company has now become an Unlisted Company and
ROC,West Bengal has been requested to update the Master Date by changing the status of
the Company from Listed Company to an Unlisted Company.

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and

forms an integral part of this report.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 23 August, 2022
Sandip Kumar Kejriwal
FCS No.:5152 C P No.: 3821
UDIN: F005152D000831956






Annexure A
To,
The Members,
Emami Frank Ross Limited
CIN: L24232WB1919PLC003123
Management’s Responsibility
1. It is the responsibility of management of the Company to maintain secretarial records,
devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate
effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

1. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

2. Ibelieve that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s
management is adequate and appropriate for me to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Wherever required, I have obtained the management’s representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

1. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
affairs of the Company.

2. T'have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 23 August, 2022
Sandip Kumar Kejriwal
FCS No.:5152 C P No.: 3821
UDIN: F005152D000831956



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of EMAMI FRANK ROSS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of EMAMI FRANK
ROSS LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at 3 1st
March 2022, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the standalone Statement of Cash Flow and the standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting standards (“Ind AS™) prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31st March 2022, its profits including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and its changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 315
March, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.



We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

Auditor's Response

report :
Key Audit Matters
1) Accuracy of Recognition,
measurement, presentation and

disclosures of revenues and other
related balances in view of Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”.

The application of the revenue recognition
accounting standard involves certain key
judgements relating to identification of
distinct performance obligations,
determination of transaction price of the
identified performance obligations, the
appropriateness of the basis used to
measure revenue recognhized over a
period.

In terms of Ind AS 115, revenue is
recognized at a point of time upon
satisfaction of performance obligation at
an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transfer of goods or services
to a customer.

We assessed the Company’s process to identify the
impact of adoption of revenue accounting standard.
Our audit approach consisted festing of the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controls and
substantive testing as follows:

a)

b)

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating
to implementation of the new revenue accounting
standards.

Selected a sample of continuing and new
contracts and tested the operating effectiveness
of internal controf relating to identification of the
distinct performance obligations and
determination of transaction price.

Selected a sample of continuing and new
contracts and performed the procedures:

i) Read, analyzed and identified the distinct
performance obligations.

iiy Compared these performance obligations
with that identified and recorded by the
company.

iify Considered the terms of the contracts to
determine the transaction price.

iv) Samples in respect of revenue recorded for
time and material contracts were tfested
using confracts agreements, customer
acceptance.




2) Related Party Transactions

The Company has entered into several
transactions with related parties during the
year 2021-22. We identified related party
transactions as a key audit matter
because of risks with respect to
completeness of disclosures made in the
financial statemenis including
recoverability thereof, compliance with
statutory regulations governing related
pariy relationships such as the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEB! Regulations and the
judgement involved in assessing whether
transactions with related parties are
undertaken at arms’ length.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among |
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

1.

We carried out an assessment of the key controls
to identify and disclose related party relationships
and transactions in accordance with the relevant
accouniing standard.

We carried out an assessment of compliance
with the listing regulations and the regulations
under the Act, including checking of approvals/
scrutiny as specified in Sections 177 and 188 of
the Act with respect to the related party
transactions. In cases where the matter was
subject to interpretation, we exercised judgement

tc rely on opinions provided by legal
practitioners.

We  considered the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures in the

financial statements, including recoverability
thereof, relating to the related party transactions.

For transactions with related parties, we
inspected relevant ledgers, agreements and
other information that may indicate the existence
of related party relationships or transactions, We
also tested completeness of related parties with
reference to the various registers maintained by
the Company statutorily.

We have tested on a sample basis, Company’s
assessment of related party transactions for
arm'’s length pricing.




Key Audit Matters

Auditor's Response thereon

3) Existence and valuation of
Inventories.

As indicated in Note 9, the value of
the Company's inventories at
yvear-end was Rs. 6983.86 lakh,
representing 15.82% of the
Company's total assets. The
existence of inveniory is a key
audit matter due to the involvement
of high risk, basis the nature of the
retail industry wherein value per
unit is relatively insignificant but
high volumes are involved which
are distributed across different
Point of Sales and warehouses.

In response to this key matter, our audit included, among
others, the following principal audit procedures:-

® Understood Management's control over physical
inventory counts and valuation

e Evaluation of the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls relating to
physical inventory counts at the stores and the
warehouse. In testing this control, we observed the
inventory cycle count processon a sample basis,
inspected the results of theinventory cycle count and
confirmed that the variances were approved and
appropriately accounted for.

e Evaluation of the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of the infernal controls relating to
purchases, sales and inventories including automated
controls

e We have also performed roll-forward and alternate
procedures on sample basis for establishing the
existence of inventory as at year-end by validating
purchases, sales, stockmovement of inventory during
the intervening period i.e. from the date physical
verification was done till the year end date.

e For a representative sample, verification that the
finished goods inventories were correctly measured,
using a recalculation of the measurement of those
inventories based on the cost of acquiring them from
suppliers and considering the costs directly
attributable to such goods.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder
Information but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
ot otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,2013,we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.



Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasopably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure “B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the standalone Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with
the requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us, the remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid / provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statement.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no such sum which needs to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by
the company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party



(*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (¢) as
provided under (a} and (b) above, contain any material misstatement

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year nor in the
previous year.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534

Date: 23. o8- 2022
UDIN: 29.p 40534 AGNHESE 1343



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Emami Frank Ross
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31%, 2022 to the extent of records available with us in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essentials components of the
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain



reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.



Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534
Date: 253.908 2022
UDIN: 2904 0534 AG N 81363



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and
relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of verification to cover all the items of
Property, Plant and Equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are
held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets) during the year ended 315 March, 2022.

{e) There were no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the
coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time during
the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility in excess
of Rs 5 crores from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets of the company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of
audit of the financial statements, the monthly returns/statements filed by the company
with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company.



iii)

vi)

(a) As disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements, the Company has provided loans
to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

(b) During the year, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the
terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the loans and advances in
the nature of loans are repayable on demand and hence, no schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iif)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the loans and advances in
the nature of loans are repayable on demand . Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii){d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) In respect of any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due
during the year, the loan or advance in the nature of loan has neither been renewed
nor extended nor any fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

(f) As disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements, all the loans or advances in the
nature of loans granted by the company are repayable on demand. The details of
loans granted to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans to
directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and
advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have been
complied with by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to
be deposits during the year within the meaning of Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Hence the requirement to report on clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to
the company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to maintain cost records prescribed by the Central Government under



vii)

viii)

section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the requirement to report on clause
(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the company

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities and no undisputed dues are in arrears as at March 31, 2022
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, value added tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no disputes on
account of dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues not been deposited.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions
relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

(@)} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks,
financial institutions and government during the year. Hence, reporting under
clause (ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender;

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has utilized the loan
amount taken during the year for intended purpose and there is no unutilized term
loan at the beginning of the year.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.



xi)

xii)

xitd)

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiary, as defined under the Act. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its Subsidiary. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to
the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of
materiality as outlined in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the
audit.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there were no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by
the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) (a) to (c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party



Xiv)

XV)

Xvi)

xvii)

xviii)

transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian accounting standards.

() The Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them as referred to in
Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group has two CICs as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial vear and in the
immediately preceding financial year;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year;

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans,
we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;



xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the compliance with second proviso to
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534
Date: 273068 2022
UDIN: 22060534A QN WFE 1343



Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

Rs in Lakh
[ Ag at As at
Particulars Notes
313t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
ASSETS |
NON CURRENT ASSETS .
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21 4,085.42 | 4,677.64
b) Capital work-in-progress 21 67.46 11.52
c) Other Intangible Assets 22 7297 187.01
d) Right of Use Assets 23 2,242.60 3,488.19
e) Intangible Assets under Development 22 189.96 17.95
f) Financial assets
i) Investments 3 70220 28931
(i) Other Financial Assets ] 1,046.50 1,048.58
1] Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 3,203.43 3,216.70
h) Other non-current assets 8 223.05 419.9%
Total Non Current Assets 11,923.539 13,356.89
|CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 9 6,983.96 7,934.38
b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivable 5 4,969.37 377135
(i) Cashand cash equivalents 10 57943 49214
{iii) Loans 4 19,431.35 44,047.68
{iv) Other Financial Assets 11 - 83.76
) Other current assets 12 25467 23824
Total Current Assets 32,218.78 56,567.55
TOTAL ASSETS 44,142.67 69,924.44
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES |
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 13 20827 208.27
b) Other Equity 14 {6,314.99) (6,862.42)
Total Equity {6,106.72) {6,654.15)
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities
(i Borrowings 15 22,966.61 21,055.94
(i)(a) Tease Liabilities 15 1,889.61 2,775.99
(i)  Other Financial Liabilities 16 23.47 22,50
Total Non Current Liabilities 24,879.69 23,854,43
CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities
i} Borrowings 15 20,890.37 47453.33
(i}(a) Lease Liabilities 15 745.29 1,031.54
(iiy Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of Micro enferprises
@ o o emerpi_ses T 43.99 2191
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
®) Micro enterprises and small enterprises ey e
(iiiy  Other Financial Liabilities 19 73284 §82.92
b) Other current liabilities 20 121.66 323.58
c) Provisions 17 26680 209.62
Total Current Liabilities 25,369.70 52,724.16
TOTAL EQUITY AND LYABILITIES 44,142 67 69,924.44

Significant accounfing polices

The accompanying notes are on Integral part of these financial statements

in teims of our attached repod of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Charterad Accountants

FRN:-329088E

Radhakishan Tondon
Partner
Membership MO, 040534

Dated : 23-08-2022
Place : Kolkata

For & on behall of 3oard of Directors

Gavtom Jaolia Suloy Chatlara]
Muanaging Dhiector Dlrector
DIn - 00604924 Diw - 08818352
Am# Ageoreral

Chiet Financlal Offces

Amita 3haltachorya
Company Secrefdry
Membenhip No.- A53270




Emami Frank Ross Lid
Statement of Profit & Loss

For the year ended 31st March 2022

Rs in Lakh
Year ended 31st Year ended Slst—|
e S NoteS | March 2022 March 2021
I [Revenue from Operations 21 49,681.02 37,243 46
II |Other Income 22 5,919.16 3,989.70
II |Total Income (I+II) 55,600.18 41,233.16
IV |Expenses:
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 37,771.11 28,428.80
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 23 950.42 507.13
Employee Benefits Expense 24 4,783.84 4,317.83
Finance Costs 7,034.83 7,158.50
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 2,03L.75 2,420.15
Other Expenses 26 2580.79 3,655.69
Total Expenses (IV) 55,152.74 46,488.10
V |Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (III-1V) 447.44 (5,254.94)
VI |Tax Expense:
Tax relating to earlier years 0.05 .52
Deferred Tax 7 (85.16) (1,431.20)
VII | Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI) 532.55 (3,824.26)
VIII |Other Camprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
i [Fair value changes in Equity instrument {(13.60) 44.28
ii [Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 36.94 49.55
iii |Income Tax relating to above (8.43) (21.14)
Other Comprehensive income net of tax 14.91 72.69
IX [Total Comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 547.46 (3,751.57)
Earnings per equity share
i |Basic (Face value Rs. 10/~ each) 25.57 (183.62)
ii |Diluted (Face value Rs. 10/- each) 25.57 (183.62)

Significant accounting polices

The acccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

In ferms of our atfached report of even daie
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-32908BE

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Gauvtam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Direclor Director
DIN - 00504926 DIN - 08818352
Amit Agarwal

Radhalgishan Tendon
Pariner
Membership NO. 060534

Dated : 23-08-2022
Place : Kolkata

Chief Financial Officer

Amrita Bhalacharya
Company Secretary
Membership No.- A5327T0



Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Cash Flow statement

For the vear ended 31st-March-2022

Rsin Lakh
A Cash flow from operating activities 20621-22 202¢-11
Net Profit before tax 44743 (5.254.94)
Adjustments for -
Depreciation and amortisabion expense 203174 2,62013
Dividend {0.50} [uX-0}
Finance costs 703495 7,138.50
Interest income {3408.69) {3.823.70)
Provision for Doubtful Dabts & Advances Written Back {32.00)
Profit/{loss) an sale /{disposal) of praperty, Plant & equipment {net) {452.36) 0.65
Lease Payments {1,311.45) {1,448.15)
Non Cash items $0.49 1,714.22
2,389.32 765.93
Adjustiments far working capital changes
Incresse/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables and Cther Liabilities {27238} (1,452.78)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 250,42 507.13
{Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivahles (1,198.02) 71643
(!.ncre?se)," Decreast in Loans and Advances and other financial & non 191,79 (153.23)
financial
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 9412 2800
{231.06) (354.36)
215626 411.57
Less:- Direct Taxes paid/{refund received)-Net {54.03) 20,95
Net Cash flow from ppearting activities 210123 F9061
B Cash flow from Investing activities
Praceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 828,56 079
Interest received 1,510.89 2,607.97
Dividend 0.80 0.80
Purchase of Property,Flant & Equipment (668.93) {208.08)
Investment in Optonally Convertible Debentures (425.00) -
Loans (given)/repayment received from Subsidizary company 3200 -
Loans {given)/repayment received from athers 25,526,410 (10,550.32)
Fixed deposit made 3278 75.38
Net cash flew from { used } investing activities 20,836.96 (8,073.48)
C Cash flow from Financing activities
Repayment of Barrowings {43,688.10) {56,730.00)
Issue/ (redemption] of Non Convertible Debentures - (8,750.00)
Proceeds from borrowings 19247 003 1,39,170.73
Interest Including Borrowing costs (7,307.08) {7.316.13)
Casht credit teken/ {repaid) (net) (96.79) 1,113.23
Net cash flow from { used } financing activities (31,850.88) 7AB7.83
Net mcrease / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+HC) §7.29 (193.02)
Add:- Cash & Cash Equivalents -Openmg balance 49214 687.16
Cash & cash equivalents -Closing balance 57943 492114
~mfnd

Notes:-

(8} The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Methed" as set out in the [ndian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS-7)-5tatement of Cash Flow

() el Asat | | Asat
.i 4 #-Map22| | F-Mar-2l
|Cash & cash equivalents includes:-
Cash in hand 132.52 16319
Baiances with Banks | |
|“Current account 43789 323.95
Fixed Deposits with Banks {including interest accrued) 811 =
i L |
|Cash & Cash Eguivalents in Cash Flow Statement I 57943 | l 45214 |
Significant accounting polices
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
In terms of our attached repert of even date For & on behalf of Board of Directors
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRIN:-329088E
Gautam Jata Sujoy Chattaraf
Managing Director Director
TN - 00504926 DIN - (8818352
Amit Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer
Radhakrishan Toadon
Partner
Membership NO. 060534
Amritz Bhattacharya
Dated : 23-05-2022 Company Secretary

Plare : Kolkata Membership No.- A53270



A Equity Share Capital

1

Emami Frank Ross Ltd

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March , 2022

Current reporting period {2021-22)

Rs in Lakh

. . Restated balance at | Changes in equity
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting Changes m E ey the beginning of share capital e e end‘ g
o Share Capital due to . the current reporting
period rior period errors the current during the current eriod
P P reporting period year P
208.27 | 208.27
Previous reporting period (2020-21)
. .. | Restated balance at | Changes in equity
P . Changes in Equity s g Balance at the end of
Balance at the begmmng. of the current reporting Share Capital due to the beginning of s'hare capital the nt repotting
period . ey the current during the current eriod
prior perio reporting period year P
208.27 208.27
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
Particalars Equity Remeasarement of Total
Retained Earnings | General Reserve Instruments Defined Benefit Equity
through OCT Plans
Balance at (1-04-20 (5,355.14) 2,124.67 12214 (252 (3,110.55)
Total Comprehensive Income for the financial year _ . ~ B B
2020-21
Fair value changes in Equity instrurment - - 44,28 - 4428
Tax Effect on above - - (5.68) - (5.68)
Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation - - = 49.55 49.55
Tax Effect on above - - - (15.46) (15.46)
Tax Effect on above - - - - -
Profit/ (loss) for the year {3,824.26) - = - {3,824.26)
Balance at 31-03-21 (9,179.39) 2,124.67 160.74 31.56 (6,862.42)
Total Comprehensive Income for the financial year
2021-22
Fair value changes in Equity instrument (13.60) (13.60)
Tax Effect on above (0.74) (0.74)
Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation 36.94 36.94
Tax Effect on above (7.69) (7.69)
Tax Effect on above n
Profit/ (loss) for the year 532.52 - - - 532.52
Balance at 31-03-22 (8,646.37) 2,124.67 146.40 6031 (6,314.99)
Significant accounting polices
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
In terms of our attached report of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-329088E
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Director
DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352
Amit Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer
Radhakrishan Tondor
Partner

Membership NO. 060534

Dated : 23-08-2022
Place : Kolkata

Amrita Bhattacharya
Company Secretary

Membership No.- A5327(
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Emami Frank Ross Limited, the Company, is primarly engaged in pharmacy
business. The Company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of fhe Companies Act applicable in india. The registered office of the
Company is located at Kolkata

Sianificant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation and compliance with Ind AS

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopfed in the
preparation of these financia! statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

These acceunts have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2073 {"Act")
read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indion Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and
the relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.These IndAS Financial Statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention,
except for the following:

Derivative Financial Instruments at FVTEL

Certain financial assets and labilities measured af fair value (refer accounting
paolicy regarding financial Instruments)

Defined Benefit Plans which have been measured at Actuarial Valuaiion as
required by relevant Ind AS,

Functiongl and presentation cumrency

These IndAS Fnancial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the
Company's functional and presentation cumency. All figures are rounded off to
nearest lacs,

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, Plant and eguipment

Property, Plant and Eguipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation
{other than Freehold Land) and accumulated impaimment ioss, if any. The cost of
Property, Plant & Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import dufies
and other nonrefundable taxes or levies and cny direclly alfributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its infended use, Interest and other
financial charges on loans borrowed specifically for acquisition of capital assets
are capifalised till the start of commercial production. Depreciafion is provided on
the written down value method The company has used written down value
method based on the useful life with the requirements of Part C of Schedule Il of
the Companies Act, 2013.

teasehold property is amortised during the period of lease.

Advances paid towards the acquisiion of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date s classified as Capital Advances under
other Non-Current Assets and the cost of assets not puf to use before such date are
disclosed under 'Capifal Work in Progress’. The cost and relafed accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statements upon sale or retirement
of the asset and the resulfant gains or losses are recegnized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss. The method of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed af each financial year end.
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When significant parts of property, plant & equipment are required to be replaced
at Intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Subsequent expenditure related to
an item of property, plant & equipment is added to its book value only if it increases
the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on exisiing property plant cnd eguipment,
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing
parts, are charged fo the statement ofprofit and loss for the period during which
such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the
difference belween the estimated / actual disposal proceeds and the canmying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Depreciaiion and useful lives
Depreciafion is provided on the written down value method (except unit Chisel

where straight fine method is used).The company has used written down value
method based on the useful life with the requirements of Part C of Schedule |l of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Intangible assets

Infangible assets accquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost.Following inifial recognifion, intangible assets are camied ot cost less any
accumulated amortisafion and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company’s intangible assets constitutes

Computer software which nhas finife useful economic lives and these are amortised
on a siraight line basis, over their useful life of 3 vears.

Tenancy right is depreciated over a period of 10 years from the date it is available
for use.

Online Application Software is written off in 6 years on Straight Line basis over the
estimated useful life,

The amorfisation period and the amortisation methed are reviewed at the end of
edch reporiing period,

impairment of property plant and equipment and intangible assets

The carying amount of assets are reviewed al each balance sheet date o
determine i there is any indication of impairment based on external or internal
factors. An impairment loss is recognisedwherever the carying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount which represents thegreater of the net selling price
of assets and their ‘value in use'. The estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using pre-tax discount rates and risks specific o the assef.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenue on retail trade of Pharmaceutical products and
Leisure products.

Revenue is recognised on safisfaction of performance obligation at an amount that
reflects the consideralion fo which the Company expects to be entifled in
exchange for of Pharmaceutical products and Leisure products.

Contract assets and Contract Liability

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assefs {which we referred
as unbilled revenue] while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract

liabilities (which we refer as unearned revenue)
Revenue from retail sales is measured ot the fair volue of the consideration

received .Revenue is reduced for discounts and rebates and value added tax,
sales tax and Goods and Service tax.

Revenue is recognised on the delivery of the merchandise to the cusiomer .when
the property in goods and confrol are transterred for a price and no effective
ownership control is retained
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Facility management fees are recognised pro-rata over the peried of the coniract.
Revenue from stores displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the
periods for which the products or the sponsors advertisement are promoted.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount cutstanding and the cpplicable effective interest rate (EIR]. EIR is fhe rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash paymenis or receipts over the
expected life of a financial liability or o financial asset fo their gross camying

amount.
Interest and Dividend inceme are included under the head "other income” in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.Dividend is recognised when the company's right to
receive dividend is established.

Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition

Foreign cumrency fransactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying
to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting cumrency
ard the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion
Fereign currency monetary items are retranslated using fthe exchange rate

prevailing at fhe reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms
of hisforical cost denominated in a foreign cumrency, are reported using ihe
exchaonge rate ot the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are
measured of fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign
currency, are franslated using the exchange rate at the date when such vaiue was
determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting
monetary items of Company ot rates different from inose at which they were
initially recorded during the vear, or reported in previous financial stafements, are
recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories are valued as lower of cost and realizable value. Cost is determined on
First in First Qut basis, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price n the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary 1o make the sale.

Emplovee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving empleoyee
services are clossified as short-termm emplovee benefits. These benefits include
salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted omount of short-term
employee benefils to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as
an expense as the related service is rendered by employses.

Post-employment benefits
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

Gratuity is funded with Life insurance corporation of India . Gratuity liability is
defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation
on projected unit credit method done at the end of each financial year in
accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Company
recognizes the net obligafion of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an
asset or liability. Gains and losses fhrough re-measurements of the net defined
benefit liability/ (assef} are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The actual retum of the portfolio
of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used
o measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized In ofher comprehensive
income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss.
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The long-term and short term clossification of gratuity is based on the actuarial
valuations.

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit confribution
scheme and the Company recognizes fhe confribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as expenditure when an employee renders the related services. The
Company has no obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective
funds already paid.

Leave encashment

The Group provides for the encashment of leave with pay subject to certain rules.
The employees are entifled o accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future
encashment / availmenf. The liability is provided based on the number of days of
unutilized leave ai each Balance Sheet date on the basis of an independent
actuariol valuation. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts
included in net inferest on the net defined benefit Tability and the return on plan
assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability}, are recognised through Cther Comprehensive Income in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are notf reclassified fo profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
ligbiiify or asset. The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Leases

The Company has applied Ind AS 114 using the modified retrospective appreach
and has accordingly not restated the comparative information. The Company o
the incepticn of a contract, assesses whether a contfract, is or contains a lease. A
confract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contrel the use
of an identified asset for a period of Hirne in exchange for consideration, Ind AS 114
infroduces a single balance sheef lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognises a right-of-use asse? representing its right o use the underlying asset and
a lease liability representing its obligafion fo make lease payments.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use of assets and lease liakilities
for short term leases that have o lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low
value assets, The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these
leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term | Lessor accounting
remains similar to the accounting under the previous standard i.e. lessor continues
to classify leases as finance or operating legse, For confracts entered into before
1st April 2019, the determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease
is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or confains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assefs and the amangement conveys a righi fo use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an amangement.



As o lessee

The Company recognises ¢ right-of-use asset and a lease fiability at the lease
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured af cosi, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liabiiity adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred
and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently degrecialed over the useful life of
the asset. On the balance sheet date, the right-of-use of asset s Included in
property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities have been included in the
vorrowings and other financial Fabilities,

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borowings or other financial fiabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is
dllocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
profit or loss over the legse period so as to preduce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

As alessor

Lease income from operating leases, where the Company is a lessor, is recognised
in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are
structured to increase in line with expected generdl inflation to compensate for the
expected inflation.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured af the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with Indian Income Tax Act. Management pericdically
evaluates positions taken in the fax refumns vis a vis posifion taken in books of
agccount which are subiect to interpretation and creates provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Ceferred tox is provided using the liability method on femporary differences
between the fax base of assefs and liabilities and their carying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporiing date.,

Deferred tax assels are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be avallable in future supported by convincing evidence against which
the deductible femporary differences, and the coried forward unused tax credits
cnd unused fax losses can be ufilized.

The carrying eamount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to fhe extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to dallow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax qsset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability s settled, based on fax
rates (ond tax laws) thot have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporing date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside
profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity]. Such deferred tox
lterms are recognized, in comelation o the underlying transaction either, in OCT or
directly in equity.
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Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has ¢ present obligation as o result of
past event; it is probable that an oulflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estfimate can be made.

If the effect of fime value of money is maoteral, provisions are disceunted using a
current pre-tox rale that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the ability.
When discounting is used the Increase in the provisien due to the passage of time is
recoanised as o finance cost.

Contingent figbilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligafion that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurence of cne or more
unceriain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation
that is not recognized because itis not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be
required to seftle the obligation. The Company does not recognize a contfingent
lfability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI
for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the year affributable fo equily shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilufive
potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 "Statement of
Cash Flows", whereby profit / {loss} before tax is adjusted for the eifects of
fransactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or paymenis. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument Is any coniract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity

and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enfity
Financial assefs and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party

to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are
initiclly measured at foir value. Trensaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acguisition or issue of financial assets and financial fiabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at foir value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liabititv.

Al recognised financial assets are subseguently measured in their enfirety at either
amertised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subseguently measured at amortised cost if they are held within
a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect confractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive ncoms

Assefs fhat are held for collection of confractual cash flows and for seling the
financial assets, where the assets cash flow represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured af falr value through other comprehensive
income([FVTCCI). There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of
Profit & Loss, even on sale of invesiment. However, the company may transfer the
curmulative gain/loss within Other Equity.

Fair value threugh profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYOC| are measured at fair

value through profit or loss. Inferest income from these financial assets is included in
ofther income.

Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the company's mancgement has elected fo present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no
subseguent reclossification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss.
Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the company's right to receive the dividend is established.

Preference Shares

The Company measures all Investments in Preference shares at amortised
costSubsequently Interest income frem these financial assets is included in finance
income ¢n EIR basis.

Impairment of finangial gssets
In accordance with Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments, the Company recognizes

impdaiment loss allowance on frade receivables based on histerically observed
default rates. Impaimment loss allowance recognized during the year is charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial ligbilifies
Financial liabiiities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Offsetting of financial instruments

The Company offsets a financial assef and a financial ligbility when if curently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the Company
intends either fo seitle on a net basis, or fo realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Seament Reporting
Identification of Seaments

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately
according to the nature of products and services provided, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit thaf offers different products and serves
different markets. The analysis of geographical segmenis is based on the areas in
which the custiomers of the Company are located.Since the Company operates
only in Indic there Is no geographical segrment.

Seagment acceounting policies
The Company prepares its segment informadiion in confermity with the accounting

policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the
Company as o whaole.

Cuash & Cash Eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on

hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three menths or less, which
are subject to an insignificarit risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and Balances
with Bank.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially af fair vaiue, net of fransaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subseguently stated ot amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of fransaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income siatement over the period of the bormowings using the effective interest rate
method. Borrowings are classified as current liakilities unless the Company has an
unconditional right to defer settliement of the ligbility for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

Borrowing costs that are direcily attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of o qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset.
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the bomrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjusiment to the bormowing costs.

Critical estimafes and judgements

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources
of estimaiing uncerfainty as at the balance sheet dale that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carnrying amounis of assets and liabilities
within the nexf financial year. The Company based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters availakle when the financial statemenis were prepared, Exisiing
circumstances and  assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Useful lives of property, plant and eguipment

The company has adopted the useful lives as specified in Schedule Il of Companies
Act, 2013 for Property, Plant & Equipment . The Company reviews the estimated
useful lives at the end of each reporting period. Such useful lives depend upon
various factors such as usage, maintenance practices etc. and can involve
estimation uncertainty, Changes in the expected level of usage and technological
developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residug! values of
these assels, therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.

Impairment of property, plant and eguipment

An impairment exists when the carmrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and ifs value in use. The
fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales
fransactions in an am's length fransaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing te asset. The value in use calculation is
based on a discounted cash flow mode! and reguires the Company 1o make an
asfimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Company's asseis are measured at fair value for financial reporting

purposes.
Significant estimates are used in fair valuation of assets.

Employee Defined Benefit Plans



The defermination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligations to
employees is made through independent actuarial valuation including
determination of amounis to be recegnized in the income statement and in the
other comprehensive income. Such vaiuation depend upon assumptions
determined after taking into account inflation, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market,

Provisions and Confingencies
Provisions and confingencies are based on management's best estimate of the

licbifities based on the facts known at the balance sheet date.

Estimation of cument tax expenses and pavable

Taxes recognized in the financial statements reflect management's best estimate of
the outcome based on the focts known at the balonce sheet date. These facts
include but are nof limited to interpretation of tax laws of various jurisdictions where
the group operafes. Any difference between the estimates and final tax
assessments will impact the income tax as well the resuliing assets and liabilities.

Impairment of financigl assets {including trade receivable)

Allowance for doubtful receivables represent the estimate of losses that could arise
due to inabllity of the Customer to make payments when due. These estimates are
based on the custormer ageing, customer category, specific credit circumstances
and the historical experience of the group as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to Flnancial Statements

3 Non Current Investments

Amounnt Rs

Fair Vaiue as per indAS

| FPair Value as per indAS

i Particulars

31st March, 2022

[ 31st March, 2021

A [Investments carried at Fair Valne through OCT
(i) Investmentin Equity Instruments (Unguoted)
Subsidiary
a Lyfresh Pvt Lid
6000000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/ - each fully paid up

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment

[

Medico Association #
12 Shares™
Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment

b All India Origin Chemists & Distributors Limited #
2000 Equity Shares of Rs, 19/~ each fully paid up
Less:» Provision for diminution in value of investment

~

Shoppers City Maintenance Co. P Ltd #
19,800 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid up
Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment

B Others

1 M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private, Limited
222 Equity Shares of Rs. 500/~ each fully paid up

2 Midkot Investment Pvt, Lid. - Note - 1
4,61,825 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up

PAN Emami Cosmed Ltd. - Note - 1
52500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Investment in Eqnity Instrnments {Onoted)
3  Emamd Limited
10,000 Equity shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up.

4 Emami Realty Limited
333 Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

6,00,00,000

6,00,00,000

42418
42418

20,000

20,000

19,800
19,300

1,6509,472

50,80,075

44,738,000

19,947

6,00,00,000

42,418
42,418

20,000
20,000

19,800
19,800

6,00,00,000

1,65,09,474

60,47,860

48,76,500

13,303

Taotal{A+B)

2,60,87 496

27447137

C  Investment in Preference Shares (Unguoted)
Investments carried at amortised cost |
Others

M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited
35,000 10% Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.100/-each fully paid up

Redeemable at par at any time within 20 years from date of issue

1632776

14,584,342

Towl(C)

16,32,776

14,584,342

D Investment in Debentures (Unquoted)
I Investments carried at amortised cost
Others
M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited -Note -2
425 Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs 100000/ - each fully paid np

Redesmable on or Before 120 months from the date of Jssue

4,25,00,000

Total(D)

4:25,00,000

Grand Total (A+B+C+D}

70220272

2,89,31479

Aggregate value of Quated Investment and market value thereof
Aggrepgate value of Unguoted Investment
#Aggrepate provision for dimunition in value of investments

44,97,947
6,57,22,325
6,00,82,218

43,59,803
24041676
6,00,82,218

** Formed ynder Bombay Noa - Trading Corporations Act, 1959 riot having Face value of Shares

** For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 37

Note-1
PAN emami to Midkot shares

Pari Emami Cosmed Limited has been amalgamated into and with Midkot Investments Private Limited . As a consequence of the scheme , the company has received, 4,61,825

shares of Midkot Investments Pvt Ltd. in return of 52,500 shares of PAN Emarni Cosmed Lid.

Note-2

425 nos. Unsecured Optionally Corrvertible Debentures @ 100,000/ - each issued by M Bhattacharya & co Pvt Ltd. Date of allotment-12-Jan-2022. The same is convertble inta

equity at the option of the issuer, or be redeemed any time within 120 months after date of allotment @ 2% premium.
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Notes to Finaneial Statements

Rs in Lakh

Loans

1 31at March, 2022

3l1st March, 2021

'Current

Loan

To Subsidiary

Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated
Credit impaired

Less:- Allowance for Doubtful debt

Less:- Balance written off during the vear
(Refer Note-22 & 26)

To related party
Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated *

{Refer Note-30)

To others

Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated

1,087.76
1,087.76

1,087.76

{1,087.76) -

69,25

19,362.10

- {1,087.76 -

1,087.76

1,087.76

8,455.47

35,592.21

Total Current- A

19,431.35

44,047.65

Totel Loaxus (A)

19,431.35

44,047.68

* since received ,

Trade receivables

Bist Match, 5022 |

31st March, 2021

Current

Considered good -Unsecured*

Credit impaired

Less:- Allowance for doubtful debts and advances

4,969.37

7.09
(7.09)

3,771.35

7.09
{7.09)

Total Current -A

4,969.37

3,771.35

*- For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 37

Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2022

Qutstanding for the folluwing period from due date of payments

*- Lien marked towards Bank Guarantes

Particulars - Tatal
Lessthan §months | 6 months - 1year 12 years 243 year Mare than 3 yra|

(i) Undisputed Trade Recaivable - Considered Good M8 95.16 73.18 3281 46.99 4,969.37
(ii} Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk | ‘ .
i) Undisputed Trads Receivable - Credit lmpaired 7.09 7.09
(i} Dispted Trade Receivable - Considered Good .
{v) Diisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant inerease in eredit risk -
{vi) Dispnited Trade Recenvable - Credit Impaired e

TOTAL 4,716.22 95.16 78,18 32,81 54.00 4,975.46
Trade Reveivables Ageing - As at 31st Mazch, 2021

Quistanding for the following period from due date of payments
Particulnrs T Total
Legs than § months & months - 1 year 1-2 years | 23 years More than 3 years

() Ui Trade - Considered Goad 331669 137,02 250.00 .79 29385 377135
(ii} Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have signifieant inreass in eredit risk -
(iif) Undisprted Trade Receivabie - Credit [mpaired 709 709
() Dispatedt Trade Reottvable - Considered Good 3
(v} Disputed Trade Reosiveble - Which have significant increase in credit risk e
(vi) Disptted Trade Receivable - Credit Inpaired .

TOTAL %,316.69 137.02 250,00 arys 26.95 3,778.44

Other Finapcial Assets 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Security Deposita
Security Deposits-Trade 1,036.13 1,005.63
Other Advances
::;f;f—i eIc)lt]:fosm pledged with Banks [including interest 10.67 42.95

Totzal 1,046.80 1,048.58




Notes to Financial Statements

Rsin Lakh

Movements in Deferred Taxes

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Deferred Tax Liability 2945 31.78

Deferred Tax Assets 3,291.38 3,216.98

Deferred Tax Liabilitiesf(Assef} (Gross) (3,261.93) {3,185.20}

Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement (31.50) (31.50)

Deferred Tax Liabilities/{Asset) (Net) (3,293.43) (3,216.70)

Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asseis) > Benefit Unabsorbed P Total
deducted for tax " differences (FVOCI)-
Obligation Losses .
purposes when Equity Shares
paid

As at 01 April, 2020 (77.01) 6.20 (1,528.08) (202.35) 26.10 (1,806.64)
Charged/(Credited)

Recognised in Profit & Loss 48.08 {44.74) (1,304.01) (130.53) - (1,431.20)

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - 15.46 - - 5.68 21.14
Recognised in Other Equity - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021 {28.93) (23.08)  (2,832.00) (332.88) 31.78 (3,185.20)
Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement - = 5 = = (31.50)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /(Asset)-as at
31-Mar-2021 (28.93) (23.08) (2,832.09) (332.88) 31.78 (3.216.70)
As at 01 April, 2021

Charged/(Credited)

Recognised in Profit & Loss (38.01) (23.05) 136.98 {161.08) = {85.16)

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - 10.76 - - (2.33) 8.43
Recognised in Other Equity - - - - £ -
As at 31st March, 2022 (66.54) (3537  (2,695.11) (493.96) 29.45 (3,261.93)
Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement - - - - - (31.50)
e e R LT (SRRt (66.94) (3537)|  (2695.11) (493.96) 2945 |  (3,293.43)

31-Mar-2022
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Notes to Financial Statements

Rs in Lakh
Other non-current assets 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Capital Advances 1.00 55.53
Advance to Directors 26,68 =
Advance to Employees 22.03 29.88
Other advances
Advance Against Purchase - 3.00
Advance Against Expenses
To Related Party - 100.00
Others - 9.00
Prepaid Expenses 6.62 817
Rent paid in advance 166.92 21441
Total 223.05 415.99
Inveritories-At l{mre:r‘::nafl :;st and Net realisable 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Stock- In-Trade 6,983.96 7,934 38
Total 6,983.96 7,934.38
Cash and cash equivalents 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Balances with Banks
On Current Accounts 437.80 328.95
Other Bank Balance
Fixed Deposits with Banks [including interest 911 _
accrued] ¥
Cash in hand 132,52 163.19
Tofal 57943 492,14
Other Financial Assets 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest accrued but not due
To Subsidiary
Considered good-Unsecured unless otherwise < _
stated
Credit impaired 131.00 163,00
131.00 163.00
Less: Provision for Doubt{ul debt - - {163.00) -
131.00 =
Less:- Balance written off during the year (131.00) - = -
[ Refer Note 22 & 26 |
To related Party
Considered good-Unsecured - 83.77
[ Refer Note 30 ]
Total - 83.77
Other current asseis 31st March, 2022 31st Mauch, 2021
Advance to Directors 10.39 -
Advance to Employees 35.74 22.05
Considered gogd Unsecured
Advance against Purchase 7.56 4.84
Advances with Statutory Authorities 128.38 7037
Prepaid Expenses 48.51 60.26
Advance against Expenses 2409 80.72
Total 254.67 238.24




13 Equity Share Capital

Rs in Lakh
Particulars 31st March, 2022 315; 3’12"‘1"‘“‘
Authorised
38,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 380.00 380.00
8,20,000 Non Cumulative Redeeemable Preference shares of Rs 100/- each. 820.00 820.00
1,200.00 1,200.00
aid u [
20,82,707 Equity Shares Rs.10/- Each fully paid up 208.27 208.27
Total 208.27 208.27
Recoxnciliation of Number of Shares
[ 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Particulars Number of (YT Number of TG
Shares Shares
Balance at the Beginning 20,82,707 208.27 20,382,707 20827 |
Shares Issued during the year = 2 - B I
Shares bought back during the year - = E -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 20,82,707 | 208.27 20,82,707 | 208.27

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions Attached to Shares

The Company has anly one class of Equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share, Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees . The dividend proposed , if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approva! of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of
all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
teld by the shareholders.

The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at the end of the reporting period is stated as below:-

J1istMarch, 2022 31st March, 2021
Name of the shareholder
bt o SofHolding | oo o ofHolding
Sneha Gardens Pviltd - - 3,836,137 18.54
Midkot Investtnents Pvi. Ltd.-Note-1 7,51,321 36.07 - -
Suraj Finvest Pvt Ltd.-Note-2 5,35,137 25.69 - -
Karan Business Private limited - Note- 1 - - 3,50,800 16.84
Zen Business Private limited - Note - 1 - - 3,148,021 16.71
Sneha Enclave Pvt Ltd 5,02,678 2414 3,53,678 16.98
Shareholding of Prompters as at 31st March'2022
Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the current year
SL.No Promoter name No.of Shares as | Change during the:] No.of Sharesas | % of Total WZ?JI:‘ESE
on 01042021 year on 31.03.2022 shares
the year
i} PRITI ASUREKA 46,561 - 46,561 2.24% 0.00%
2 JAYANT GOENKA 15,448 - 15,448 0.74% 0.00%
3 USHA AGARWAL 4,000 - 4,000 0.19% 0.00%
4 PRASHANT GODENKA 2,655 - 2,655 0.13% 0.00%
5 MIDKOT INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED - Note - 1 - 7,51,321 7,51,321 36.07% 100.00%
6 KARAN BUSINESS PRIVATE LIMITED - Note - 1 3,50,800 (3,50,800) - -100.00%
7 ZEN BUSINESS PRIVATE LIMITED - Note - 1 348,021 (3.48,021) - -100.00%
8 PAN EMAM] COSMED LIMITED - Note - 1 52,500 (52,500) - 100.00%
9 SNEHA GARDENS PRIVATE LIMITED - Note - 2 3,856,137 (3,86,137) - -100.00%
10 SURAJ FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED - Note- 2 5,35137 535,137 25.69% 100.00%
11 SNEHA ENCLAVE PRIVATE LIMITED 3,53,678 1,459,000 502,678 24.14% 42.13%
15,59,800 2,98,000 18,57,800 89.20%
Note

Karan Business Private limited , Zen Business Private Limited , PAN EMAM] Cosmed Private Limited amalgamated with Midkot [nvestments Private Limited vide
Nationa! Company Law Tribunal order dated 15.11.2021

2 Name of the company has changed from Sneha Gardens Private Limited to Suraj Finvest Private Limited with effect from 28th April'2021




Notes to Financial Statements

14 Other Equity

b)

Rs in Lakh
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2022 2021
Reserves & Surplus (6,522.20) (7,054.72)
Includes General Reserves and retained earnings.
Other Comprehensive Income 207.21 192.30
Includes re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit
plans and gain/loss on fair value of investments
Total (6,314.99} (6,862.42)
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Notes to Financial Statements

[Refer Note 15]

Total-Borrowings-{i)

20,890.37

Rsin Lakh
Financial Liabilities 31stMarch, 2022 3istMarch, 2021
Borrowlings
Term Loans
Secured
From Banks # | 18,154.53 12,428.86
Less:- Current Maturities of Long term debt 6,424.23 11,730.30 2,599,711 0.,829,15
Vehicle Loan # - 239
Less:- Current Maturities of Long term debt - - 1.66 0.73
Nop Convertible Debentures
Unsecured 11,236.31 11,226.06
Total-Borrowings- (i) 22,966.61 21,055.94
Lease Liability ;
Long Term Maturities of Lease Obligation 1,889.61 2,775.99
Total-Lease Liability-(i) (a) 1,889.61 2,775.99
Total-Non Current- A 24,856.22 23,831.93
Borrowings
oans Repaya d
Secured Loan from Banks
Cash Credit [ Note 15.1] 825.14 1,121.93
Working Capital Demand Loan [ Note 15.1] 4,400.00 5,225.14 4,200.00 5,321.93
Short Term Overdraft - 39,530.24
Unsecured #
Related Party 9,241.00 E
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 6,424.23 2,601.36

47,453.53

I Liability :
Current Maturities of Lease Obligation 745.29 1,031.54
Total-Lease Liability-(i}(a) 745.29 1,031.54
Total-Current-B 21,635.66 48,485.07

Total Borrowings (A+B) 46,491.88 72,317.00

# Refer Note 29

15.1 Bank-1-Cash Credit And Working Capital Demand Loan are secured primarily by way of hypothecation on the entire Current
Assets of the company existing and future comprising of Stock-in-trade, receivables , book debts and other current assets. These
loans are further secured Collateraly by way of Hypothecaticn / mortgage on all fixed assets (excluding vehicles ) of the

company, both present and future.

Bank-2 -Subservient charge by way of Hypothecation over entire Current asset & moveable Fized assets of the company (both
present & future). Also, exclusive charge by way of pledge of shares of promoter shareholder and also coprporate guarantee by 2

promoter shareholder .

6 [ Other Financial Liabilities 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest due to MSME 0.97 -
Deposit against rent 22,50 22.50

Total Non Current 2347 22.50
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Notes to Financial Statements

Rsin Lakh

| Provisions 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
|
Provision for Emploves Benefits
For Gratuity 143.04 102.87
For Leave 123.76 266.80 106.75 209.62
Total 266.80 209.62
Trade payables 31st March, 2022 3ist March, 2021
Total olftstandmg dues of Micro enterprises and small 43.99 21.91
enterprises
Total m{tstandmg dues of cred.ltors other than Micro 2.568.75 2,801.06
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 2,612.74 2,822.97
Trade Payables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2022
Quistanding for the following period from due date of payments
FParticulars TOTAL
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 41.95 167 0.35 0.03 43.99
(ii) Others 2,378,28 103,79 40.58 46.09 2,568.75
(iii} Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
TOTAL 2,420.23 105.46 40.93 46.12 2,612,74
Irade Pavables Ageing - As at 315t March, 2021
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments
Particulars TOTAL
Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 12.85 8.93 0,01 0.12 21.91
(#) Others 2,565.71 166.069 17.90 5135 2,301.05
(iii} Dispated dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
TOTAL 2,578.57 175.02 17.92 51.47 2,822.97
Cther Financial Liabilities 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 82.6% 374.18
the es
Employee Expense 292,43 203.82
Creditors for Capital Goods 53.47 28.99
Liabilities for Expenses 304.25 650.15 275.93 508.74
Total 732.84 882.92
Other current liahilities 31st March, 2022 31stMarch, 2021
Statutory Liabilities 13.42 18.20
Advance from Customers 108.24 305.38
Total 121.66 323.58
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Rsin Lakh
Revenue from Operations 2021-22 2020-21
Sale of Products 49,402.81 37,088.24
Other Operating Revenues
Rent 55.01 38.65
Income From Store Displays 198.14 103.04
Franchisee Fees 14.12 0.50
Facility Management Fees 10.94 278.21 13.03 155.22
Total 49,681.02 37,243.46
Other Income 2021-22 2020-21
Interest Income
Interest on Loan given 5,331.90 3,749.35
Interest on Others
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost 71.56 67.97
Interest on Deposit 3.80 371
Interest on Income Tax refund 143 76.79 2.67 74.35
Dividend on Long Term Non-Trade Investment 0.80 0.80
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 444.64 0.22
Provision for Loans / Debts Written off 1,213.76
Less : Adjusted against Provision (1,218.76) - -
Excess Provision for Doubiful Debts & Advances written back 32.00 -
Insurance Claim 0.33 38.54
Compensation-Business Claim - 61.00
Liabilities Written Back 858 54.34
Miscellaneous Receipts 24.12 11.10
Total 5,915.16 3,989.70
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 2021-22 2020-21
(1) Opening Inventory 7,934.38 8,441.51
(ID) Closing Inventory 6,983.96 7,934.38
{Increase)/Decrease 95(.42 507.13
Employee Benefits Expense 2021-22 2020-21
Salaries and Wages 4,310.61 3,926.80
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 352.20 280.38
Staff Welfare Expense 121.03 110.65
TFotal 4,783.84 431783
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Rs in Lakh
Finance Costs 2021-22 2020-21
Finance cost on Lease obligation 128.05 127.03
Interest Expense- Non Convertible Bonds 1,427.97 2,916.84
Interest to Banks , Working capital Loans , Interest on 5,069.19 3,115.50
Unsecured loans Efc.
Other Borrowing Costs 409,62 999.13
Total 7,034.83 7,158.50
Other Expenses 2021-22 2020-21
Power & Fuel 289.43 261.93
Rent & License Fees 447.89 83.23
Repairs to Building - 0.89
Maintenance Charges 629.18 693.54
Security Charges 54.34 52.16
Insurance 27.01 17.96
Rates & Taxes 113.93 29.60
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 106.47 84.59
Commission 54.30 65.94
Professional & Legal Charges [Refer note - 27] 224.31 285.95
Internet and other communication expenses 68.95 75.36
Loss on sale / discard of Fixed Assets 9.76 5.79
Provision for Diminution in value of Investments in
T - 600.00
subsidiary
Loss allowance for doubtful debts to subsidiary - 950.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 555.22 448.75
Total 2,580.79 3,655.69
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Rs in Lakh
27 Payment To Auditors
Particulars
Year ended 31st Year ended 31st March
March 2022 2021

Audit Fees 12.54 1254
Tax Audit Fees 0.96 0.96
Limited Review 1.50 1.50
Other Services 0.12 0.03
Total 15.12 15.03

28 Information for Earnings per share as per IND AS 33

Particulars As at 31st March 2022} As at 31st March 2021
Net Profit 532.55 (3,824.26)
Weighted average number of shares 20,82,707 20,82,707
Earnings per share - Basic & diluted 25.57 (183.62)
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29 Details of Borrowings:-

Details of Term Loans from Bank

Rs bn Lakh

sl TR Lo ROl as on 31- Security Amount outstanding Amount outstanding
No, Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-21
1 Woaorking 9.25% p.aon | Second charge over ail existing primary &|Principal amount 2,440.17 2,662.00
Capital_term | oustanding INR |collateral securities including mortagages|Amortised cost as 410,99 5 616.10
Loan- Under created in favour of the bank, subject to|per INDAS “ e
ECLGS of NCGTC the subsisting charges created over Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
various primary and collateral securities, Date Amaount Date Amaount
i"CILfdi"g securities charged by third Repayabie in 44 monthly Repayable in 48 monthly
Ranties; installments by 30th installments by 30th
Novernber 2025 November 2025
2 Term Loan- | 1yr MICLR+0.45% |Subservient  charge by way  of|Principal amount 666.67 1,000.00
Rupee - At present- |hypothecation over entire current asset[Amortised cost as 664.47 995.75
9.10% p.acn |and moveable fixed asset of the|per INDAS
outstanding INR [company {both present and future). The Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
same is further secured by pledge of Date Amount Date Amount
shares by a promoter shareholder
.Further secured by way of corporate Repayable in & quarterly Repayable in 8 quarterly
guarantee of a promoter shareholder installments by st March installments by 1st March
2024 2024
3 Term Loan- 15%p.a on First Charge by way of Hypothecation /|Principal amount 2,175.00 2,700.00
Rupee outstanding INR |mortgage on all the fixed assets of the|amortised cost as
company ( movable and immovable }|ger inDas 2,175.00 2,700.00
botl? BIESSHY [Epd WURMEl' Emsludie Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
Vehicles .
Second charge by way of Hypothecation Date Amount Date Amount
on the entire current assets of the
company , existing and future ,
comprising , inter alia , of stocks of raw
material , work-in-progress , finished Repayabie in 7 quarterly Repayable in 12 quarterly
goods , receivables , book debts and installments by 30th Installments by 30th
other current assets . The same is further December 2023 December 2023
secured by pledge of shares by a
promoter shareholder
4 Term Loan- 15%p.aon  [1st Charge by way of Hypothecation /|Principal amount 4,550.00 6,125.00
Rupee outstanding INR |mortgage on ?II the fixed assets/Amortised cost as 4,546.67 6,117.51
{movable and immovable ) of the|per INDAS
company, hoth present and future Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
excluding Vehicles. .The same is further Date Amount Date Amount
secured by pledge of shares by =2
promoter shareholder .
Second charge by way of hypothecation
on the entire current assets of the
company , exiting and future |, Repayable in & quarterly Repayable in 11 quarterly
comprising , inter alia , of stocks of raw installments by 28th installments by 28th
material , work-in-progress , finised September 2023 September 2023
goods , receivables , book debts and
other current assets .
5 Term Loan- 15%p.aon  [ist Charge by way of Hypothecation /|Principal amount 8,499.70 -
Rupee cutstanding INR |mortgage on all the fixed assets of the|Amortised cost as £.357.40 )
company, both present and future|per INDAS ¥
excluding Vehicles. .The same is further Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
secured by pledge of shares by a Date Amount Date Amount
promoter shareholder . Repayable in 51 monthly
Second charge by way of hypothecation installments by 30th June
on the entire current assets of the 2023
company , exiting and future |,
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Rs in Lakh
29 Details of Borrowings:-
Details of Term Loans from Bank
[ sl ROl as on 31« Security Amount cutstanding Amount cutstanding
Type of Loan
No. Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-21
comprising , inter afia , of stocks of raw|
material , work-in-progress , finised|
goods , receivables , book debts and
other current assets .
6 Rated unlisted | 12% interest p.a | 112.5 Bonds issued at face value of Rs Principal amount 11,250.00 11,250.00
Redeemable Non lcr each repayable by way of bullet :
Convertible repayment on the expiry of the term of fMRiEEENERERRG 11,236.31 11,226.06
Debentures debenture . Secured by way of pledge of ol 3
shares by promoter shareholding and Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
also guaranteed by a promoter
shareholder. Alse, hypothecation over a Date Amount | Date Amount
designated account.
10-Jul-23 11,250.00 10-Jul-23 11,250.00
Details of Vehicle Lean
St Type of Loan ROl as on 31- Security Amount outstanding Amount cutstanding
No. Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-21
1 Vehicle Loan 9.50% pa. on Saciired by fifst charge /movtgage onithe Princip'al amount - 2.39
monthly . . Amortised cost as
respective vehicles - 2.39

reducing basis

per INDAS

Repayment Schedule

Repayment Schedule

Equated Monthly Instalment
of Rs.15099/- each, upto

15/08/2022
Total Outstanding as at year end-Principal 29,581.54 23,739.39
Total Cutstanding as at year end-amortised cost as per INDAS 29,390.34 23,657.31
Current Maturities-Principal 6,424.23 2,601.36
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Relaigd Pariy Disclosure

Parties where control exlsts

Subgidiary

Lyfresh Pvt Ltd- wholly owned subsidiary

Key Managerlai Personnel & Other DMrectors

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr Gautam [atia Managing Director & “xecutive CRlcer
Mr Sufay Chattara| ‘Whaletime Director
Ms Chadaravalll Srinlvasa Bhatta Nalini Whaletime Director
Mr. Anurag Jatla ‘Wholetime Director
Mr. Amlt Agarwal [ jolned w.ef 02-05-2022 | Chief Pinandal Qificer
Mr, Akhilesh Agarwal [ resigned w.e.f 31-03-2022 ] Chief Financial Officer
Ms Amrita Bhattacharya Company Secretary
Other Directors

Mr. Debashish Bhaumik Independent Dirgctor
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Director
Mrs Karabi Sengupta Independent Director
Mr. RK Jatia

Mrs Vandana Jatia

Mrs Neeta Agarwal

Midkot Investments Private Limited [ Company is ar assoclate of the Entty |
Suraj Finvest Private Limited [ name changed From Stieha Gardens Pvi. Ltd, ] [ Company is an associate of the Entity |
Sneha Enclave Private Limited [ Company is an associate of the Entity |

AMRI Hospitals Ltd.

Archara promoters & Bevelopers Pvr Ltd

Bhanu Vyapaar Pvt Ltd. [ amalgamared with Sneha Gardens Pyt Itd - Date - §2-02-2021]
Diwakar Viniyog Pvt Ltd [ amalgamated with Sneha Enclave Pyt Iid - Date - 02-02-2021]
Emami Agrotech Ltd.

Emarni Capital Markets Ltd {Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd - Date - 15-11-2022)
Karan Business Pvt Ltd [Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd - Date - 15-11-2022)
Emami Realty

Emami Art

Emami Ltd,

Emami Paper Mills Ltd.

Emami Foundation

M Bhattacharyya & Co. Pvt. Ltd.

New Way constructions Itd (Merged with Midkort Investment Pyt Ltd-Date-15-11-2022)
Niramay Distributors Pvt Ltd,

Prabhakar Viniyog Pvt. L. [ amalgamated with Sneha Gardens PvtItd-Date-02-02-2021]
PAN Emami Cosmed Ltd . (Merged with Midkot investment Pvt Lid-Date-15-11-2022)
Premier Ferro Alloys & Securities Ltd .

Raviraj Viniyog Pvt Ltd. { amalgamated with Sneha Gardens Pvtltd - Date - 62-02-2021]
Shopper's city maintenance company Pvt Itd

South city Projects kolkata Ltd.

Suntrack Cc ce Pyt Itd [ amalg with Sneha Exclave Pyt itd - Date - 02-02-2021 ]
Suraj Viniyog Private Limited { amaigamated with Sneha Gardens Pvt lid - Date - 02-02-2021 |
Shri Prashant Goenka

Nayee Disha Communications Pvt Itd

Shri [ayant Goenka

Smt Priti A Surekha

SGN Retail Pv Lid

’D_:.Mmgm Rs In Lakh
Description of rejationship Nature of I Forthe Pl Talyear | Am inding ** ]
| with party ! ctl

Traps 2021-22 | 202021 | ason3i-Mae2? | ason31-Mar-21 |

| Subsidiary Provision for dimunition In value of Investment - 600.00 | - =
Loss Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts = 950,00 | = 3
Investment in Subsidiary - = 590,00 406,00
Provision against leans glven written back 1,250.76 - - -
| Loan Given including Intsrest accrued - - - 1,250.76
{Key Managerial Personnel Salary 26254 23946 = -
Perquisites | 13.19 9.17 - a |
Sale of Fixed Assets 32353 E = s |
Rent Received 0.34 0,51 035 D80
i Loans & Advance Given L 43.91 - 3751 -
Cther Directors Siting fees | 2.30 2.47 - -
Salary | 11.29 15.26 - -
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel |Perauisites 8.6t 0.83 - | -
1 Retzinership | 37.80 20.30 | -
Other Enttes Fale of Goods | 828686 5. 789.14 1L195.71 I 1,302.37
Display Charges 19.64 23.77 - -
Rent Received 040 161 = 051
Ambulance Hire Charges 516 6.42 - -
Reimbursement of exp-Income 3.13 407 - -
Purchase of Assets 3000 B = -
Purchase of Goods 7,495.85 4,865.20 [53.87) [17.50)
Guarantee Commission Paid 117.75 164.65 (40.38) (B4.62)
Interest on Loan taken 2.419.89 901.93 {B2.69) {267.88)
Rent & maintenance paid 30498 21270 [8.57) [22.41)
Royahty 10.00 10.00 Eral -
Electricity Charges 2576 13.24 (6423 (211)
Advt & Sales promotion 216 - 789 | -
Interest oz Loan Given 335.62 2,673.20 - 83.77 |
Advance/Deposit given 32500 100.0G & 12017 |
Reimursment of exp 368.561 1.79 = (0.16)
Lean Given 4,865.00 22,776.00 69.25 845547
Loan Given refunded 12,462.00 49,294.11 = -
Loan Taken 51,026.00 96,730.00 [9,241.00) -
Loan Taken refund hack 41,785.00 97,364.05 - -

**. Figures in brackets denote Credit Balance



31 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
Therefore, Net Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 3293.43 lakhs (P.Y.- Rs.3216.70 lakh) has been recognised til} date

Notes to Financia] Stat

in the accounts in compliance with IND AS 12 on" Income Taxes"

32 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments :-

a Contingent Ljabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Bank Guarantees 403.04 297.84
Contingent Liability disclosed above represents possible obligations where the possibility of cash outflow
to settle the obligation is remote .

b Commitments
Estimated amount of Commitment not provided - Rs. Nil.

33 Assets given on Operating Lease
The company has given assets under non-cancellable operating lease . The total lease rent received on the
same is Rs 0.40 Lakh- [ P.Y - Rs 0.40 Lakh ]
The minimum future lease rentals receivable in respect of non-cancellable lease as at 31-March-22 are as
under:

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Lease contributions for the year 040 0.40
Minimum Lease payment contributions
-Not later than one Year 0.40 0.40
-Later than ene year but not later than five years 2.00 2.00
-Later than 5 years 13.60 14.00

34 Assets taken on Operating Lease

The company has taken shops on rent.The total minimum lease payments and present value of minimum

lease payments are as follows:-

Rs in Lakh

| 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
A iy Present value off] Minimum | Presentvalue of
Particulars Minimum b ..
L s s Sl Minimum lease Lease Minimum lease
A T payments payments payments
-Not later than one Year 1,026.83 745.29 1,648.60 1,031.54
-l.ater than 1 Year 2,543.95 1,889.61 3,378.59 2,776.00

The difference between minimum lease payments and the present value of minimuin lease payments of Rs. 935.88 lakh (P.Y-
Rs 1219.65 lakh) represents interest not due.
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35 Defined benefitplan
151 Defiped benefiolan (Gratulty)

iGratuity‘.Th! Company has s defined Gratuity Plan for jrs employess. Every empluyee who has

L

RsinLakbs

five years or move of

service gats & gratulty on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for pach completed year of service, The Scheme is

funded with an § pany In the form of palicy.
Year ended 318t March | Year ended 2Est March
2022 2021
Particuiars
Gratulty T Gratulty
1 Pomded Funded |
A |G of |
1 |CurrentService Cost 70.54 S8.88
2 |Pastservice Cost - -
3 |Loss/(Gain) ansetdement 3
4 Net interestincosme/{cost) on the net defined berefit Hability 7.40 161
[Asset]
5 iTDhl ised in th of Profit & Loss 78.64 6049
B Wet asset/[Uabllity) recognlsed In halance sheetas at 31st
Mzrch 2022
1 |Presectvalee of Defined Seneflc Obligatian | 57241 | 520.75
2 |Fairvalue of nlan assets 429.07 | #17.89
3 |Funded Status [Surphis/(defrit]] {143.041 (102.87)
4 |Netasset/(abllty) recognised in bajence sheet (143.04) (102.87}
© Change in Defined Benefit Oblpation during the year ended
31st Mareh 2022
1 |Presentvajue of DBO atberinning of nertod 520.75 487.02
2 |CurrentService Cost 70.94 SE.BB
3 Interest Cost | 35.93 3714
4 Re-measarement{er actwarlallfgaln] /loss arlsies from - N
-Change In demographic assumptions - -
-Change {n financial assumptions (26.97) 1968 |
-Experience variatien [Le Actmal experience vs assumptions} 3.21) (7397) |
5 |Past Service cost = 2
6 |Beneflts Paid {19.38) | f23.02)|
7 | Acauisiion adfustment 2o | |
8 | Effect of business combinations or diswosls s 1|
9 | Presentvalue of DBO atthe end of period 572,11 520.73
D |Chanet In Falr Value of Assets |
1 |Fatr value of Planned assets at beainning of perjod 417.86 | 462,39
2 |Investment tncome Z0.8% | 3053
3 |Emplaver’s contribution 053 =
4 |Benefirs pald 19.38) (23.021|
5 Return an plan assets, exchiding amount recognised In ne; [nterest 0s0 1527 |
expense
& |Acquistionadiustment (67.51)
7 | Falrvalue of Plan assets at end of tho period 4Z9.04 417.8B6 |
E | Other Comprehenstve Income
1 |Actuarlal (gains)/Losees
-Changes in demographic assumptons = =
-Chanees in financtal assumptions {26.92) 3968
-Experience variznce (Le Actual experlence vs assumptions) &21) (v397)
2 ell:tu:rn:sl:n plan assets, excluding amonunt recognised In net Interest (o.80 {1517
3 |Companents of A;Iaﬂned benefit costs recognised in other 36,94 4955
ncome ]
i il | TheMajor categories of plan assets as a % oftotal planassets As arB1st Mareh 2022 l Auat 313t March 2021
Fund managed by insurer 100% | 100%
T Asat31smiMarchZ822 | Asat3ist March 2621
Fitancial assumptions | I
| Discount rate % 13!]%' 6:50%
Rate of ingrease in salarjes 9% pa 9 pa
Dempgranhic assumptions
|Mnmllty rate (% of IALM 2012-143 100% | 100%
Normal retirement age 54 years S8 years
Attrition rates, based on ags(% p.a] for all ages 2% pa 2% pa
|
[[iv_[Sensitivicy amalysls 1 ]

| | Significant actuarfal assemptions for the dsterminatden of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate expected saiaryi

increase and mortality . The sensitivity znalysis below have been determined based on reasonable passible changes of the
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period , while holding all other sssumptions constant. The results o{i

| sensitivity 2analysis is given helow:-
|Revenue from aperatfon \ Asat3tstMarch 2022 | Asat3IstMarchz021 I
Dzfined benefit obligation base | S7ZI1 | 32075 |
] AsardistMarch2022 | Asat3istMarch2021
! Particulars | _Decrease Increase | Decrease  [ncrease
®  Discountrate {-/ +1%:) | 643.28 51259| 58944 452,49
(9% change campared to base due o sepsitivity} 12.44% -10.40% 13.19% -10.99%
B Salarygrowthrate -/ +1%) | 51433 6398 45478 F:
(3 change compared to base due bo sensitivity} | -16.10% 11,83%. -10,75% 1245%
c |Attrition rate [/ +50%,) ! SBLES 56374 53209 510.85
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) | 167% -146% 2.18% -1.90%
4 |Mortality rate (-/ +10%5) | 573.26! 570.97 52215 519.37
% change compared tn base due to sensitivity) { 0.20% -0.20% | 0.27% -0.26% |
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actuzl change in defined henefit obllgation as it is
unlikely that the change In assumptions would eccur [n isolation of ene another a5 some of the assumptions may be correlated .
¥ Effect efplan on Entlty's Fubare Cash Flows
a)  Funding arrangements and fanding policy
The company has purchased aw Insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employess . Every year , the
Insurance compamy carries out a funding valuation based on the Jatest emplyee data pravided by the Company. Any deficlt In
the assets arising as a reult of such valuston is funded by the compamy
) ected Hon during the next annual period
iParticulars Asat3lst March 2922 Arat st March 2021
|TI'le Company's hest estimate of Contribution during the next year 216.66 16409
| |

£) Maturity profile of Defined benefit oblizaton
Partientars AsutIistMarch20ZZ | Asat3istMarch20Z1

[Wetgheed cverage durution {based an discounted cash flows) | 13years 13 years |
Expected cash Dows aver the next years I

Fenfned on basis) | Axat3st Mareh 2022 As gt Itst March 2021

1 year | 55.57 32.29
2 to 5 years 12045 119.68
& to 10 years 195.89 17745
More than 30 years 1,26616 1,12635 |
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35 Definedbenefitplan
35.2 Defined hegefit plan -Leave
i Year ended 31stMarch | Yearended 3ist March |
2022 2021
Leave encashment Leave encashment
g N it ded
A | Components of Emnlover Expenses
1 CurrentService Cost 25.36 17.97
Z  |Pastservice Cost = S
3 |Loss/[Gain} cn settlement = h
4 I::st_::;eru[ Income/{cest) on the net defined benefit liability 7.38 757
5 |change in demographir assumptions
& |Actuarial [gains)/ Lesses due to Change In financial assumption (6.44) 9.52
7 |Actuarial {gains)/ Losses due to Change in experlence variance 3136 (3.38)
8 |Total Exp recognised in the of Profit & Loss 57.66 31,68
B Net asset/{Hability) recognised in balance sheet as at 325t
March 2022
1 |Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 122.76 106,75
2  |Fair valze of plan assets - -
3 |Funded Status [Surslus /(deficit)T (122.75) [106.75)
4  |Netasset/(Habllity) recognised in balance sheet {123.76) {i06.75)
c Change In Defined Benefit Obligation doring the year ended
31istMarch 2022
1 |Presentvalue of DBO atbeginning of period 106.75 11430
2 |Current Service Cost 25.26 17.97
3 |Interest Cost 7.37 7.56
4 |Re-measurement (or actuarial)(gain)/less arfsing from = P
-Change in demographicassumptions - -
-Change in financial assumptions (6.44) 952
~Experience varfation {i.¢ Actual expericence vs assumptions) 3136 (3.38)
5 [Past Service cost o H
6 |Banefits Paid (£0.64) [39.42)
7 | Acquisition adiustment -
B |Effect of husi; binatlons or d . L
9 |Present value of DBO at the end of period 12376 106,75
D |Change ix Falr Valoe of Assets
1 Falrvalue of Planned assets at beginning of period - -
2 |Investment income - -
3 |Employer's contribution 40.64 39.42
4 |Benefits paid [40.64) [39.42)
5 Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised [n net interest 1 .
EXDENSE
6 |Accuistion adiustment
7 |Fairvalue of Plan assets at end of the period - -
il |The Major categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets Asat 31st March 2022 As at 315t March 2021
Fund managed by insuret NA A
1
it |[Assumptions Asat 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 |
Financial r
Discount rate % 7.30% 6.90% pa
| Hate of increase in salaries 9% pa. 9% pa.
| Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate (% of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
Normal retirement age 58 years 5H years
1 Attrition rates, based on age(% p.a) for all ages 2% p.a 2% p.a

iv |Sensitivity analysis
ignil actuarial

ions for the det

sensitivity analysis is given below:-

on of the defined bexefit obligation are discount rate expected salary
increase and mortality . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonablepossible changes of the
Jons occuring at the end of the reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of

T
I IReveuue from aperation | Asat3istMarch20Z2 As at 31st March 2021
Defined benefit abligation base | 123.76, 106.75]
As at 31st March 2022 Asat 31st Mareh 2021 |
Particulars Decrease Increase D Increase
a  |Discount rate {-/ +1%6) 140.84 109.61 12196 9419
(% change comparad to base dus to sensitivity] 13.80% -11.43% 14.25% -11.76%
b |Salary growth rate (-f +1%) 108.96 141.31 9369 122.29
[% change compared to base due to sensitivity] -11.95% 14.19%] -12.23% | 14.56%
¢ |Attrition rate [~/ +50%) 12628 12157 109.49 104.39
[% change compared to base due to sensitivity} 2.04% -1.76% 2.57% -2.21%
d  |Mortality rate (-/ +10%} 124.07 12345 107.09 106.41
(9% change compared to base due to sensitivity] 0.25% -0.25%| 0.32% -0.31%
Tke sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit cbligation as it is
un]ikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

v  Effect of pfan on Entity’s Future Cash Flows
a) Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligation

Particulars l Asat3istMarch2022 | Asat3istMarch2021 |
'Weighted average duration [ based on discounted cash flows) | 13 Years 13 Years]
Expected cash flows over the next years (valued on Asat3istMarch2022 | Asat®istMarch 2021
undisconnted basis)

1 year 6.28 619
2to5years 22.31 17.37
6to 10 years 39.11 33.37
More than 10 years 322.65 264,51
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36 Fair Value Measurement

The fair value of financial assets & liabilities is classified in various fair value hierarchy based on following three levels:-

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadiusted) in active market for identical assets or labilities,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. s prices)
or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
market approach and valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-

specific estimates.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

The fair value of the financial assets and Habilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidated sale.

Based on the evaluation of Trade Receivables, allowances are considered to account for the expected losses of these receivables. As at end
of each reporting year, the carrying amount of such receivables , net of allowances (if any) , are not materially different from their

calculated Fair values.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the vear.

When the fair value of unquoted instruments cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, the group carries such instriments at cost less

impairment, if applicable.

{c) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cest :

The Company uses Discounted Cash Flow Valuation Technigue which involves determination of present value of expected receipt

discounted using appropriate discounting rate.

Pty 31-Mar-Z2 31-Mar-21
CaryingValue | FairValue | Carying Value | Fair Value

Financial Assets
Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted) 16.33 16.33 14.84 14.84
Investment in Debentures {Unguoted) 425.0:) 425.00 2 -
Security Deposit 1,036.13 1,036.13 1,005.63 1,005.63
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings(including interest accrued) 43,939.63 43,939.68 68,883.66 68,883.66

The Management has assessed that the Fair Value of other financial assets and abilities (fixed deposits, short term loans and advances
and other current liabilities) approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short term nature of these instruments. Fair value of
non-current financial insruments {other than above) appreximates to their carrying value which is based on effective interest rate.

a) Financial Insbruments by category Rs in Lakh
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amortised Cost | FVTOCL At Cost Amortised Cost | FVTOCI | AtCost
Financial Assets
Investment in Equity shares [Quoted} - 44.98 - - 48.90 B
Investment in Equity shares (Unquoted) - 215.90 - - 225.57 -
Investment in Equity shares {Unguoted)-Deemed cost - = E S
Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted) 16.33 - e 14.84 - -
Investment in Debentures (Unquoted) 425.00 - 2 o = -
Trade Receivables 4,969.37 - - 377135 - -
Loans and Advances 19,431.35 - - 44,047.68 - -
Other Financial Assets 1,046.80 0 - 1,132.34 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 579.43 - - 492,14 - .
Financial Liahilitdes
Borrowings(including interest accrued) 43,939.68 - - 68,883.66 - -
Trade Payables 2,612.74 - - 2,822.97 - -
b} Fair Value Hierarchy
i Fair Value
Particulars Hierarchy Asat Asat

Financial Assets 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

[nvestment in Equity Share(Quoted} Level 1 4498 4£8.90

Investment in Equity Share(Unquoted) Level 2 215.90 22557
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(a)

(B)

ote inancial Statem
Rs Lakh

Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company, the company has risk management policies as described below

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / failure by the counterparty to meet financial
obligations as per the terms of contract. The company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, financial guarantees. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration
of credit risks. Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode are made after judging
credit worthiness of the customers or advance payment. The history of defaults has been minimal and outstanding
receivables are regularly monitored. For credit risk on the loans to parties, the company is not expecting any
material risk on account of non-performance by any of the parties.The company creates allowances for all
unsecured receivables and advances based on lifetime expected credit loss . The company has written off the
Expected credit loss amounting to Rs. 1218.76 Lakh .

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company fails to honour its financial obligations in accordance with terms of
contract. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and
to close out market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cash
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy
involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance
sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The Company does not have any derivative financial liability.The following are the remaining contractual maturities
of non derivative financial liabilities at the reporting period:

Year ended 31.3.2022

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 years | More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 6,424.23 37,432.76 - 43,856.99
Interest on borrowings 82.69 - - 82.69
Trade Payables 2,612.74 - - 261274
Employee Benefits Payable 292.43 - - 292.43
Other Liabilities 357.72 - 357.72
Total 9,769.81 37,432.76 - 47,202.57
Year ended 31.3.2021

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to5years | More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 2,601.36 65,208.12 - 68,509.48
Interest on borrowings 374.18 - - 374.18
Trade Payables 2,822.97 - - 2,822.97
Employee Benefits Payable 203.82 - - 203.82
Other Liabilities 304.92 - - 304.92
Total 6,307.25 65,908.12 - 72,215.37




{ C) Market risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of

changes in foreign exchange rates.

There is no transaction which will result in foreign currency exposure during the year.
Foreign Currency paid for the year w.r.t imports amounts to Rs. 17.08 lacs (PY: Rs.14.21 Lacs), and w.r.t travelling

amounts to Rs. NIL (PY:: Rs. NIL).

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates,

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term borrowings with variable rates, which
expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables remaining constant, the company's profit before tax is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Rs in lakh
. Increa-lse/ . | Effect on Profit
Particulars decrease in Basis
. before tax
points

31.03.2022 +0.50 (219.70)
-0.50 219.70

31.03.2021 +0.50 (344.42)
-0.50 34442

(iii) Price risk

The company's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held - both quoted and unquoted
and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss. The
company is not expecting high risk exposure from its investment in securities.
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40 Since the company operates only in one segment i.e retailing and also in one country i.e India, hence
information on segment reporting with respect to operating and geographical segment is not provided .

41 The Company has accessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amount of Receivables, Inventories, Investments and other assets/ liabilities. Based on the internal and
external sources of information, the Company is of the view that the impact of COVID-19 is not material. Due to the
nature of pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties in
future periods, if any.

42 Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary .

Significant accounting polices 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our attached report of even date

For Agrawal Tondon & Co. Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director

FRN:-329088E DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

Amit Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Amrita Bhattacharya

Company Secretary

Radhakrishan Tondon Membership No.- A53270
Partner

Membership NO. 060534

Dated : 23-08-2022
Place : Kolkata



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of EMAMI FRANK ROSS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of EMAMI
FRANK ROSS LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary( the Holding Company
and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) which comprise the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements and
on the other financial information of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidaied Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,as amended (“the Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting
standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March 2022, their
consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows, and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31t
March, 2022, These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matiers to be communicated in our

report:

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’'s Response

1) Accuracy of Recognition,
measurement, presentation and
disclosures of revenues and other
related balances in view of Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®.

The application of the revenue recognition
accounting standard involves certain key
judgements relating to identification of
distinct performance obligations,
determination of transaction price of the
identified performance obligations, the
appropriateness of the basis used io
measure revenue recognized over a
period.

In terms of Ind AS 115, revenue is
recognized ai a peint of time upon
satisfaction of performance obligation at
an amount that reflects the consideration
1o which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transfer of goods or services
to a customer.

We assessed the Group's process to identify the
impact of adoption of revenue accounting standard.
Our audit approach consisted testing of the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controls and
substantive testing as follows:

a) Evaluated the design of internal controls relating
to implementation of the new revenue accounting
standards.

b) Selected & sample of continuing and new
contracts and tested the operating effectiveness
of internal control relating to identification of the
distinct performance obligations and
determination of transaction price.

c¢) Selected a sample of continuing and new
contracts and performed the procedures:

i} Read, analyzed and identified the distinct
performance obligations.

iy Compared these performance obligations
with that identified and recorded.

jii) Considered the terms of the contracts o
determine the transaction price.

iv) Samples in respect of revenue recorded for
time and material contracis were tested
using contracts agreements, customer
acceptance.




2) Related Party Transactions

The Group has entered into several
fransactions with related parties during the
| year 2021-22. We identified related party
transactions as a Key audit matter
because of risks with respect to
completeness of disclosures made in the
financial statements including
recoverability thereof, compliance with
statutory regulations governing related
party relationships such as the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations and the
judgement involved in assessing whether
transactions with related parties are
undertaken at arms’ length.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

1.

We carried out an assessment of the key controls
to identify and disclose related party relationships
and transactions in accordance with the relevant
accounting standard.

We carried out an assessment of compliance
with the listing regulations and the regulations
under the Act, including checking of approvals/
scrutiny as specified in Sections 177 and 188 of
the Act with respect to the related party
transactions. in cases where the matter was
subject to interpretation, we exercised judgement
to rely on opinions provided by legal
practitioners.

We  considered the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures in the
financial statements, including recoverability
thereof, relating to the related party transactions.

For transactions with related parties, we
inspected relevant ledgers, agreements and
other information that may indicate the existence
of related party relationships or transactions. We
also tested completeness of related parties with
reference to the various registers maintained by
the Company statutorily.

YWe have tested on a sample basis, Company's
assessment of related parly transactions for
arm’s length pricing.




Key Audit Matters

Auditor's Response thereon

3) Existence and valuation of
Inventories.

The value of the Company's
inventories at yearend was °
6983.96lakh, representing
15.82% of the Company's total
assets. The existence of inventory
is a key audit matterdue to the
involvement of highrisk, basis the
nature of the retall industry wherein
value per unit is relatively
insignificant but high volumes are
involved which are distributed
across different Point of Sales
and warehouses.

In response to this key matter, our audit included, among
others, the following principal audit procedures

Understood Management's control over physical inventory
counts and valuation

e Evaluation of the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls relating to
physical inventory counts at the stores and the
warghouse. In testing this control, we observed the
inventory cycle count processon a sample basis,
inspected the results of theinventory cycle count and
confirmed that the variances were approved and
appropriately accounted for.

e Evaluation of the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls relating to
purchases, sales and inventeries including autcmated
controls

e We have also performed roll-forward and alternate
procedures on sample basis for establishing the
existence of inventory as at year-end by validating
purchases, sales, stockmovement of inventory during
the intervening period i.e. from the date physical
verification was done till the year end date.

e For a representative sample, verification that the
finished goods inventories were correctly measured,
using a recalculation of the measurement of those
inventories based on the cost of acquiring them from
suppliers and considering the costs directly
attributable to such goods.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder Information but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process of the Group.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,2013,we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.



Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements,

We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
comrmunication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure “B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of
the Order.

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We / the other auditor whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors.

{c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial
statement.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the

Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Holding company

)

as on 31t March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company
and the report of the statutory auditor appointed under section 139 of the Act of iis
subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group company is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the

requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given te us, the
remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company
to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has no pending litigations on its financial position in its Consolidated
financial statement.

i. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no such sum which needs to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary have
represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company and its subsidiary to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or its subsidiary
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.



b) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary have
represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or any of its subsidiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditor
of the subsidiary, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s attention that has
caused us or the other auditor to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(1) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e} as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year nor in the
previous year.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534

Date: 93.08-202% L3
UDIN: oo 0L65> A A%NWP@:LS



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Emami Frank Ross
Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of March 31%, 2022 to the extent of records available
with us in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Group for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Holding Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
cffectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essentials components
of the internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent



applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.



Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534
Date: 23.68. 2022

UDIN: 2206653 4 AQNWF 813463



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE, INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief and based on the consideration of report of other auditor of
the subsidiary company , we state that:

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report
on Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the consolidated
{inancial statements.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534

Date: 23- 98.202% 243
UDIN: 900 60 S34AQNNFQ:L



Emami Frank Raoss Lid
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

- Rsin Lakh
[ Partical | Asat Asat
¥ NOWS | ot March, 2022 | 315t March, 207
ASSETS
INON CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21 | 408542 4,677.64
Bb) Capital work-In-progress 21 67.46 1153
<) Other Intangible Assets 22 7297 187,01
d} Right of Use Assets 23 224260 3,488.19
e} Intangible Assets nnder Development 22 189.96 17.95
) Goodwill on Consolidation 36.23 36,23
£} Financial assets
(i} Investments 3 702.20 28931
(ii)  Other Financial Assets [ 1,046,80 1,145.74
h) Dreferred Tax Assets {Net) 7 329343 3,216,70
i) Other non-current assets B 22305 420.00
Total Non Current Assets 1196012 13,490.29
CURRENT ASSETS
a} Inventories 9 6,983.96 7.972.10
b) Financial assets
{i)  Trade receivable 5 £,969,37 3,771.46
(ify  Cash and cash equivalenis 10 58135 506.42
(iif) Ecans 4 1943135 44,047.69
(iv) Other Fimancial Assets 11 - B3.77
] Agsets Held for Sale - 880.16
d) Cther current assets 12 254.67 24299
Total Current Assets 32.220.70 57,504.5%
TOTAL ASSETS 150,82 7,994,588
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Hquity Share Capital 13 20827 20827
B) Other Equity 14 {6,278.74) (5,920.68] |
Total Equity (6,070.47) (5,71241)
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITEES
a) Financial liabilities
(i Borrowings 15 22.966.61 21,055,95
| (i)(a) Lease Liabilities 15 1,589.61 2,775.99
i)  Other Financial Liabilities 16 23.47 22,50
Total Non Carrent Liabilities 24,879.69 23,854.44
CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Fiiratieial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 15 20,890,37 47,469.28
((a) Lease Liabilities 15 745.29 1,031.54
(i) Trade payables 13
Total m.lltsmndmg dues of Micro enterprises and small 1399 o1
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro
enterprises and small enterprises R SO
(iiiy Other Financial Liabilities 19 733.72 a82.92
b} QOther current liabilities 20 122,67 436.06
<} Provisions 17 266.80 210,05
Total Curtent Liabilities 25371.59 52,852.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 180.52 70,994.88

Significant accounting pelices

The accompanying notfes are an Integral part of these financial slalements

In ferms of our altached report of even dale
for Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chertered Accountanis

FRM:-329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Pariner
Membership No. 060534

Dated : 23-08-2022
Place : Kolkata

For & en behall of Board of Diractors

Gavtam Jafia Sujoy Chattara]
Manoging Directer Director
DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352
Amit Agarwal

Chilet Financial Ofiicer

Amiita 8hatfacharya
Company Secrefary
Membership No.- A53270



Emami Frank Ross Ltd

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss

For the vear ended 31st March 2022

Rs in Lakh
Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
s Notes | ) fareh 2022 March 2021
I |Revenue from Operations i} 49,682.14 37,244.82
I |Cther Income 22 5,995.29 4,004.96 |
II |Total Income ([+11} 55,677.43 41,249,78
IV |Expenses:
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 37,7711 2842880
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 23 950.42 507.13
Employee Benefits Expense 24 4,783.84 4,317.84
Finance Costs 25 7,034.83 7,158.50
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 2,031.75 242015
Other Expenses 26 3,563.54 2,107.28
Total Expenses {IV) 56,135.48 44,939.69
V |Profiy/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (I1I-1V) (458.05) (3,689.91)
¥l [Tax Expense:
Tax relating to earlier years .05 0.53
Deferred Tax 7 (85.16); (1,431.21)
VIO | Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI) {372.93) {2,259.23)
VIO |Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
i |Pair value changes in Equity instrument (13.50) 4428
ii |Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 36.94 49.55
iii |Income Tax relating to above {843 (21,14}
Other Comprehensive income net of tax 14.91 72.70
IX |Total Comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII} (358.03) (2,186.53)
X [Profit/(loss) atrributable to
Owners of the company (372.95) (2,259.23)
Non-Controlling interests
(372.95) (2,259.23)
X1 |Comprehensive Income
Owners of the company 14,51 7270
Non-Controlling interesis
14.91 72.70
XII |Total comprehensive income attributable to
Owmers of the company (358.03) (2,186.53)
Non-Controlling interests
(358.03) (2,186.53)
Earnings per equity share
i |Basic (Face value Rs. 10/- each) {17.91) (108.48)
ii |Diluted {Face value Rs. 10/- each) {17.51) (108.48)

Slgnificant accouniing polices

The accompanylng noles are an Infegral part of these Ananclal statements

In terms of our attached report of even dale

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Churtered Accountants
FRN:-32708BE

Gavtam Jalia
Managing Direcfor
DIN - 004664726

Radhakrishan Tondon
Pariner
Membershlp NO. 060534

Dated : 23-08-2022
Place : Kolkata

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Sujoy Choftaraj
Directar
DIN - OB8TB352

Amit Agarwal

Chiet Finanelal Officer

Amrita Shattacharya
Company Secretary

Membership No.- A53270



Emam{ Frank Ross Led
Consolidated Cash Flow stafement

For the year ended 31-March-2022

Bsin Lakh
A Cash flow from operating activities 2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit before tax (458,06) {3,689.91}
Adjustments for -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,031.74 2420115
Dividend {0.80) {0.30)
Finance costs 703455 7.158.50
[nterest income {5408.65) (3,823.70)
Profitf {loss} on sele /{disposal) of property, Plant & 152 36)
equipment {net) and right of use assets ¢ 0.58
Lease Payments (1,311.45} (1,448,15)
Non Cash items 1,054.57 148.95
2,490.01 765.69
Adjustnents for working capital changes
Increase/ {Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other Liabilities (383.83) (1454.75)
{Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 988.13 507.13
{increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables {1,197.91) 716.33
{Increase)/ Detrease in Loans and Advances and other
financial & non financial 2= (2.23)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 94.56 27.65
(30250) (361.33)
2,187.5% 404,35
Less:- Diirect Taxes paid/ {refund received)-Net (54.03) (20.96)
Net Cash flow from opearting activities 213348 383.40
B Cashflow from Investing activities
Proceeds from Sale of Property,Plant & Equipment BAALET 66.18
Interest received 151089 2,607.97
Dividend 0.30 [1X:0]
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (665.93) {208.08)
Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures (425.00} -
Loans {given)/repayment received from others 28,526.40 {10,550.32)
Fixed depesit made 3224 75.38
Net cash flow (used) in investing activities 29,841.01 (8,0{18.07)
€ Cash flow from Financing activities
Repayment of Barrowings {43,735.10) (96,775.90)
Issue/ {redemption} of Non Convertible Debentures - (28,750.00)
Proceeds from borrowings 19.241.00 1,39,170.73
Interest Including Borrowing costs {7.312.67) {7.316.47)
Cash credit taken/(repaid) {net) {96.79) 1,113.23
Wet cash flote (used) in financing nctivities {31,899.56) 7/441.60
Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 74,92 (183.07)
Add:- Cash & Cash Equivalents -Opening balance 50642 682.50
Cash & cash equivalents -Closing balance 58135 506.42
..cnted
Notes:-

(a) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian
Accounting Standard {ind AS-7)-Staternent of Cash Flow

® : I Asal I Asat |
Sl { 3-Manz [ 3iMacdll
Cash & cash equivalents includes:- | [
Cagh in hand | 13253 163.24
Balances with Banks
~Current account 439,71 34518
|Fixed Deposits with Banks [including interest accrued] 9.11 -
Cash & Cash Equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 581.35 | 506,42
Sigmificant accounting polices
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
In terms of our attached report of even date For & on behalf of Board of Directars
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-329088E
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Director
DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352
Amit Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer
Radhalkrishar Tondon
Partner
Membership No, (60534
Amrita Bhattacharya
Dated : 23-08-2022 Company Secretary

Place : Kolkata Membership No.- A53270



A FEquity Shaze Capital

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March , 2022

1 [Current reporting period (2021-22)

Rs in Lakh

Place : Kolkata

Membership No.- A53270

. .. |Restated balance at| Changesin
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting Sl - Bquity e beginning of equity share HRLRrTPTH em:% “
g Share Capital due to . . the current reporting
period : 3 the current capital during the .
prior period errors - A period
reporting period current year
208.27 208.27
2 [Previous reporting period (2020-21)
Restated balance at| Changes in
. B g Changes in Equity b . Balance at the end of
Balance at the beglmung' of the current reporting Share Capital due to the beginning of equity sl:lare A
period i ' the current capital during the 2
prior period errors h ; period
reporting period current year
208.27 208.27
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income To.tgl :‘E:luty I
arti Equity Remeasurement of | attributable to o
o Retained Farnings | General Reserve Inskruments Defined Benefit owners of the ngz:g:tng
thromgh OC1 Plans company
Balauce at 01-04-20 {6,014.50) 2,124.67 12213 (2.53) {3,732.14)| -
Total Comprehensive Income for the financial year . B _ _
2020-21 B
Fair value changes in Equity instrument - - 4428 - 44.25
Tax Effect on above - - (5.68) - (5.68)
Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation = - - 49.55 49.55
Tax Effect on above - - - {15.46) {15.46)
Profit/ (loss} for the year {2,259.23) - - - (2,259.23)
Balance at 31-43-21 {8,273.72) 2,124.67 160.73 31.55 {5,920.68) =
Total Comprehensive [ncome for the financial year
2021-22
Fair value changes in Equity instrument (13.60) (13.60}
Tax Effect on above (0.74) (0.74)
Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation 36.94 36.94
Tax Effect on above (7.69) (7.69}
Frofit/ {loss) for the year (372.95} - - - (372.95)
Balance at 31-03-22 (8,646.69) 2,124.67 146.40 60.79 {6,278.74) z
Significant accounting polices
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
In terms of our attached report of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-329088E
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Director
DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08813352
Amit Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer
Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Membership N0. 060534
Amrita Bhattacharya
Dated ; 23-08-2022 Company Secretary
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1.1

(i)

1.2

1.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Group Overview

The consolidated financial statements comprise Financial Statements of Emami Frank Ross
Limited (the Parent) and Lyfresh Private Limited (the subsidiary } for the year ended March
31,2022.The Company, is primarily engaged in retail business dealing in Pharmaceutical
products and leisure products while the subsidiary is engaged in agriculture business.The
Company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act
applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 7, Jawaharlal Nehru
Road, Kolkata-700013.

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial statements .

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind-AS") as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (the Rules) as amended issued by the MCA,

Basis of measurement

These IndAS Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
using historical cost convention, except for the following:

Derivative Financial Instruments at FVTPL
Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial Instruments)

Defined Benefit Plans which have been measured at Actuarial Valuation as required by
relevant Ind AS,

Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as Current or Non Current as per the companies

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule III to the Companies Act 2013
and IND AS 1 - Presentation of Financial statements .

The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency

These IndAS Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the Group's
functional and presentation currency. All figures are rounded off to nearest lacs.
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iii

iv

Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statement of the Parent and its
subsidiary which have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard for
Consolidated financial Statements (INDAS 110), prescribed under section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013. Control exists when the power over the entity , is exposed, or has rights , to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using
its power over the entity.Power is demonstrated through existing righis that give the ability to
direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's retwrns. Subsdiary is
consolidated from the date from which control commences tll the date control ceases.The
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis.

The consolidated financial statements of the group companies have been consolidated on a line
by line basis and intra group balances and transactions including unrealized gains/loss from
such transactions are eliminated upon consolidation,

The Difference between the cost of investment in subsidiary over its proportionate share in the
net asset value at the time of acquisition of stake in the subsidiary is recognised in the financial
statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be. For this purpose , the company's
share of networth is determined on the basis of latest financial statements prior to the
acquisition after making necessary adjustments for material events between the date of such
financial statements and date of respective acquisition. Capital Reserve is adjusted against
Goodwill.

Changes in parents ownership interest in subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing
control of the subsidiary are recognised directly in equity.

Non controlling interest in net profit/loss of the subsidiary for the year is identified and
adjusted against income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the
company . Non controlling interest in net assets of the subsidiary is identified and presented
separately in Consolidated Financial Statements.

Carrying amount of investment in subsidiary and parent's portion of equity in subsidiary is
offset (eliminated).

As far as possible, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the
same manner as the company's financial statements.

The financial statements of the entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
the same reporting date as that of the company.
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1.6

Fair Value Measurement

The group uses valuaton techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All methods of assessing fair value
result in general approximation of value and such value may never actually be realised. All
assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
Jiabilities

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable .

c) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, Plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation {other than
Freehold Land} and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of Property, Plant &
Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable
taxes or levies and any directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use. Interest and other financial charges on loans borrowed specifically for
acquisition of capital assets are capitalised till the start of commercial production. Depreciation
is provided on the written down value method (except unit Chisel where straight line method
is used). The company has used written down value method based on the useful life with the
requirements of Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold property is amortised during the period of lease.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date is classified as Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital Work in Progress’.
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statements
upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss. The method of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end.

When significant parls of Property, Plant & Equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant &
equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing
property plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the pericd during
which such expenses are incurred.



b)

1)

iii)

d}

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, Plant & Equipment are measured as the
difference between the estimated / actual disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation is provided on the written down value method (except unit Chisel where straight
line method is used).The company has used written down value method based on the useful
life with the requirements of Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Group's intangible assets constitutes
Computer software which has finite useful economic lives and these are amortised on a straight

line basis, over their useful life of 3 years.
Tenancy right is depreciated over a period of 10 years from the date it is available for use.

Online Application Software is written off in 6 years on Straight Line basis over the estimated
useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the year end. Bearer Plants which is used in the production or supply of
agriculture produce and expected to bear produce for more than a period of twelve months are
capitalized as a part of Property, Plant & Equipment. The cost of Bearer Plant includes all cost
incurred till the plants are ready for commercial harvest. Bearer Plants are depreciated from
the date when they are ready for commercial harvest. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Estimated useful lives of
the bearer plants has been determined to be as follows :-

Sugarcane:-3 Years
Pomegranate:-15-20 years
Guava:-12-17 years

Biological Assets:
Biological Assets are measured at fair values less costs to sell which approximates the cost.



g)

Impairment of property plant and equipment and intangible assets

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is
any indication of impairment based on external or internal factors. An impairment loss is
recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount which
represents thegreater of the net selling price of assets and their “value in use’. The estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rates and risks
specific to the asset.

Revenue Recognition
The Company derives revenue on retail trade of Pharmaceutical products and Leisure

products.

Revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance cbligation at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for of Pharmaceutical
products and Leisure products.

The Parent's performance obligation is to trade of Pharmaceutical products and Leisure
products.The Company has adopted IND AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
which introduces a five-step approach to measuring and recognising revenue from contracts
with customers. Under IND AS 115, revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance
obligation at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company has elected to apply
the Cumulative cafch up method in adopting IND AS 115. In accordance with the cumulative
catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect
on adoption of Ind AS 115 was nil.

Contract assets and Contract Liability

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we referred as unbilled
revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract Habilites (which we
refer as unearned revenue)

Revenue from retail sales is measured at the fair value of the consideration received .Revenue is
reduced for discounts and rebates and value added tax, sales tax and Goods and Service tax.

Revenue is recognised on the delivery of the merchandise to the customer ,when the property
in goods and control are transferred for a price and no effective ownership control is retained

Facility management fees are recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract. Revenue from
stores displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the periods for which the products or
the sponsors advertisement are promoted.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of a financial liability or a
financial asset to their gross carrving amount.

Interest and Dividend income are included under the head “other income” in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.Dividend is recognised when the company’s right to receive dividend is
established.

Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at
the date of the transaction.




h)

i)

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when
such value was determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary
items of Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the
year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses in the
vear in which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories are valued as lower of cost and realizable value. Cost is determined on First in First
Out basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus
and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in
exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered
by employees.

Post-employment benefits

The Parent operates the following post-employment schemes:

Gratuity is funded with Life insurance corporation of India . Gratuity liability is defined benefit
obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method done at the end of each financial year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 -
Employee Benefits. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its
balance sheet as an asset or Hability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net
defined benefit Hability/(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The actual return of the portfolio of plan
assets, In excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan
amendments are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

The long-term and short term classification of gratuity is based on the actuarial valuations.

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit contribution scheme and
the Company recognizes the contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure
when an employee renders the related services. The Company has no obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective funds already paid.

Leave encashment

The Group provides for the encashment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
employees are entitled to accumulate Jeave subject to certain limits, for future encashment /
availment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilized leave at each
Balance Sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.



iv}) Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included in net

)

interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised through Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Leases

The Parent has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and has
accordingly not restated the comparative information. The Parent at the inception of a contract,
assesses whether a contract, is or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Ind AS 116 introduces a single balance sheet lease accounting
model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Parent has elected not to recognise right-of-use of assets and lease liabilities for short term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Parent
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis
over the lease term . Lessor accounting remains similar to the accounting under the previous
standard ie. lessor continues to classify leases as finance or operating lease. For contracts
entered into before 1st April 2019, the determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains
a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

As alessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adfusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated over the useful life
of the asset. On the balance sheet date, the right-of-use of asset is included in property, plant
and equipment and lease liabilities have been included in the borrowings and other financial
liabilities.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial labilities as
appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

As alessor

Lease income from operating leases, where the Company is a lessor, is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflation.



k)

1)

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordanice with Indian Income Tax Act. Management perifodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns vis a vis position taken in books of account which are subject to interpretation
and creates provisions where appropriate.

Deferred fax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
base of assets and [abilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available in future supported by convincing evidence against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no Ionger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity}). Such deferred tax items are recognized, in correlation to
the underlying transaction either, in OCI or directly in equity.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event;
itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seitle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used the increase in the provision due to the passage of ime is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The
Company does not recognize a contingent Hability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash
Flows”, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.

Finangial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial assets and labilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilifies {other than financial assets and financial labilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial asset or financial Hability.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTCCI). There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the company
may transfer the cumulative gain/loss within Other Equity.

Fair value through profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive the dividend is
established.

Preference Shares
The Parent measures all investments in Preference shares at amortised cost.Subsequently
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income on EIR basis.



q)

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments, the Group recognizes impairment loss
allowance on frade receivables based on historically observed default rates. Impairment loss
allowance recognized during the year is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Offsetting of financial insbruments
The Company offsets a financial asset and a financial Iiability when it currently has a legally

enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Segment Reporting
Identification of Segments

The Parent operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of geographical
segments is based on the areas in which the customers of the Company are located.Since the
Company operates only in India there is no geographical segment.

Segment accounting policies
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies

adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term. deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and Balances with Bank.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
fransaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.



Critical estimates and judgements

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimating uncertainty as at the balance sheet date that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due o market changes or circumstances arising beyond
the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The company has adopted the useful lives as specified in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013

for Property, Plant & Equipment . The Company reviews the estimated useful lives at the end
of each reporting period. Such useful lives depend upon various factors such as usage,
maintenance practices etc, and can involve estimation uncertainty. Changes in the expected
level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the
residual values of these assets, therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs
to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm's length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model and requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
Significant estimates are used in fair valuation of assets.

Employee Defined Benefit Plans

The determination of Parent's Hability towards defined benefit cbligations to employees is
made through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be
recognized in the income statement and in the other comprehensive income. Such valuation
depend upon assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions and contingencies are based on management's best estimate of the liabilities based
on the facts known at the balance sheet date.

Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

Taxes recognized in the financial statements reflect management’s best estimate of the outcome
based on the facts known at the balance sheet date. These facts include but are not limited to
interpretation of tax laws of various jurisdictions where the group operates, Any difference
between the estimates and final tax assessments will impact the income tax as well the resulting
assets and liabilities.




Impairment of financial assets {including trade receivable)

Allowance for doubtful receivables represent the estimate of losses that could arise due to
inability of the Customer to make payments when due, These estimates are based on the
customer ageing, customer category, specific credit circumstances and the historical experience
of the group as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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3 Non Current Investments

Rsin Lakh

31
Particlars

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

A [Investments cartied at Cost]
1  Investmentin Equity Instruments (Unquoted}

2  Medico Association #
12 Shares**

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of invesbmeni

b All India Origin Chemists & Distributors Limited #
2000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Less:- Provision for diminuton in value of investment

¢ Shoppers City Maintenance Co. P Ltd #
19800 Equity Shares of Re.1/- eech fully paid up

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investrnent

B Investments carried at Fair Value through OCT]

1 M, Bhattacharyya & Co. Private. Limited
222 Bquity Shares of Rs, 500/ - each fully paid up

2 Midkot Investtnent Pvt. Lid. - Note -1
461825 Equity Shares of Es. 10/ - each fully paid up

PAN Emami Cosmed Ltd. - Note - 1
52500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
3 Emami Limnited
10000 Equity shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid ap.

4  FEmami Realty Limited
333 Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

D42
(042) g

0.20
{0.20) -

0.20
(0.29) z

165.02

50.80

44.78

0.20

0.42
(0.42) -

0.20
(0.20) .

0.20
(0.20) .

165.09

60.48

48.77

013

Total(A+B)

260.87

274.47

C  Investment in Preference Shares (Linguoted’
Investments carried at amortised cost]
Others
M, Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited
15000 10% Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.100/-each fully paid
up
Redeemable at par at any Hme within 20 years from date of
issue

16.33

14.84

Total{C)

16.33

14.84

D Investment in Debentures (Unquofed)
Investments carried at amortised cost |
Others
M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited -Note -2
Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs 100000/ - each fully
paid up

Redeemable on or Before 120 months from the date of Issue

Total{D}

425.00

Grand Tofal (A+B+C+D)

70220

289.31

Appregate value of Quoted Investment and market value thereof
Aggregate value of Unquoted Investment
#Aggregate provision for dimunition in value of investments

44.98
657.22
0.82

48.90
240.41
0.82

** Formed under Bombay Non - Trading Corporations Act, 1959 not having Face value of Shares

** For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 37

Note-1
PAN emami to Midkot shares

Pan Emami Cosmed Limited has been amalgamated into and with Midkot Investments Private Limited . As a consequence of the scheme , the company has
received 4,61,825 shares of Midkot Investments Pvt. Lid. in return of 52,500 shares of PAN Emami Cosmed Lid.

Nofe-2

425 nos. Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures @ 100,000/ - each issued by M Bhattacharya & co Pvt Lid. Date of allotment- 12-jan-2022. The same is
convertible into equity at the option of the issuer , or be redeemed any time within 120 months after date of allotment @ 2% premium.
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Rs in Lakh

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Current

To related party

Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated * 69.25 8,455,47
(Refer Note-30
To others
Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated 19,362.10 35,592.21
Total Current- A 19,431.35 44,047.68
Total Loans (A) 19,431.35 44,047.68

* since received

‘Trade receivables 31st March, 2022 31zt March, 2021
Current ’
Considered good -Unsecured* 4,969.37 3,771.46
Credit impaired 7.09 7.09
Less:- Allowance for doubtful debts and advances {7.09) (7.09}

Total Current -A 4,969.37 3,771.46

*- For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 37

Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2022

Particulars

‘Outstanding for the following period from doe date of paymerts

Less than & monthy

& monthy - 1 year

E-2 years 2-3 yerrs

Il\v'lol'e than 3 years

Total

{i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good

471622

95.16

78.18 3281

4699 |

4,96037

{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which kave significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impai

7.09

(iv) Disputed Trade Reczivable - Considered Geod

{v) Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have signuificant increase i credit nsk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired

TOTAL

4,716.22

95.16

78.18 32.81

4,976.46

Trade Recelvables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2021

Particelars

Outstanding for the follawing period from due date of payments

Less than 6 months

6 monthy - 1 year

1-2 yrars 2-3 yenrs

Meore than 3 years

Total

(i) Undispuied Trade Receivable - Considered Good

3,316.60

13712

250.00 3

29.85

3,771.46

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increass tn credit rigk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit hmpaired

709

7.09

(tv} Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good

(v) Disputed Trade Rzceivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk.

{vi) Disputed Trade Recefvable - Credit Impaired

TOTAL

3,316.69

137.13

37.79

250.04

36.95

3,778.55

Other Financial Assets

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Security Deposits

Security Deposits-Trade 1,036.13 1,102.79
Other Advances
Fixed Deposits pledged with Banks [inciuding interest 10.67 42.95
accrued]*

Total 1,046.80 1,145.74

*- Lien marked towards Bank Guarantee




Movements in Deferred Taxes

Rs in Lakh

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Deferred Tax Liability 2945 31.78
Deferred Tax Assets 3,291.38 3,216.98
Deferred Tax Liabilities/{Asset) (Gross) (3,261.93) {3,185.20)
Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement (31.50) {(31.50}
Deferred Tax Liabilities/{Asset) (Net) (3,293.43) (3,216.70)
Liabilities/P ; :
rovisions Defined On e & el
4 (e n Depreciation Assets
Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) that are Benefit Unabsorbed ifrerehras (EVOCT)- Total
deducted | Obligation Losses Equity Sh
for tax (vl spases
As at 01 April, 2020 (77.01) 6.20 (1,528.08) (202.35) 2610 |  (1,806.64)
Charged/(Credited)
Recognised in Profit & Loss 48.08 (44.74) (1,304.01) (130.53) - (1,431.20)
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - 15.46 - - 5.68 21.14
Recognised in Other Equity - - - o ¥ _
As at 31st March, 2021 (28.93) {23.08) (2,632.09) (332.88) 31.78 {3,185.20)
Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement - - - - - (31.50)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /{Asset)-as at 31-Mar-2021 (28.93) (23.08) (2,832.09) (332.88) 31.78 (3,216.70)
As at 01 April, 2021
Charged/(Credited)
Recognised in Profit & Loss {38.01) (23.05) 136.98 (161.08) - (85.16)
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - 10.76 - - {2.33) 8.43
Recognised in Other Equity - - - - = =
As at 31st March, 2022 (66.94) (35.37) (2,695.11) {493.96) 29.45 {3,261.93)
Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement - - - - - (31.50)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /(Asseb)-as at 31-Mar-2022 {(66.94) {35.37) (2,695.11) (493.96) 29.45 {3,293.43)
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Rs in Lakh
Other non-current assets 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Capital Advances 1.00 55.53
Advance to Directors 26.65 -
Advance to Employees 22.03 29.89
Other advances
Advance Against Purchase - 3.00
Advance Against Expenses
To Related Party - 100.00
Others - 9.00
Prepaid Expenses 6.42 8.17
Rent paid in advance 166.92 214.41
Total 223.05 420.00
Inventories-At lower of cost and Net realisable value 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Stack- In-Trade 6,983.96 7,972.10
Total 6,983.96 7,972,190
Cash and cash equivalents 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Balances with Banks
On Current Accounts 439,71 343.18
Other Bank Balance
Fixed Deposits with Banks [including interest 911
accrued] %
Cash in hand 132.53 163.24
Total 581.35 50642
Other Financial Assets 31st March, 2022 31st Mazch, 2021
To related Party
Considered good-Unsecured - 83.77
[ Refer Note 30 ]
Total - 83.77
Other current asseis 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Advance to Directors 10.39 -
Advance to Employees 35.74 22.37
Considered good ,Unsecured
Advance against Purchase 7.56 9.25
Advances with Statutory Authorities 128.38 70.37
Prepaid Expenses 48.51 60.25
Advance against Expenses 24.99 80.74
Total 254.67 242.99




inanei

13 Equity Share Capital

Rs in Lakh
31stMarch, | 31stMareh,
Partcul
s 2022 2021
Authorised
38,006,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each 380.00 380.00
8,20,000 Non Cumulative Redeeemable Preference shares of Rs 100/- each , 820.00 820,00
1,200.00 1,200.00
ssued ibed & Fuolly Paid u
20,82,707 Eguity Shares Rs.10/- Each fully paid up 208.27 208.27
Total 208.27 208.27
Reconciliation of Number of Shares
31stMarch, 2022 31st March, 2021
Particulars Number of Nt Number of i
Shares Shares
Balance at the Beginning 20,82,707 2068.27 20,82,707 208.27
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - = -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 20,82,707 | 208.27 | 20,82,707 | 208.27
ts, Preferen Share:

The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per
share, The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees . The dividend propesed , if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the company the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution
of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares keld by the shareholders.

The details of sharehaolders holding more than 5% shares as at the end of the reporting period is stated as below:-

I 31stMarch, 2022 31st March, 2021
Name of the shareholder Number of Number of
[ ding )

Shares Held LBl Shares Held Yot Holdine
Sneha Gardens Pvtltd - - 3,86,137 18.54
Midkot Investments Pvt. Ltd.-Note-1 751,321 36.07 n n
Suraj Finvest Pvt. Ltd.-Note-2 5,35,137 25.69 - -
Karan Business Private limited - - 3,50,800 16.84
Zen Business Private limited - - 3,48,021 16.71
Sneha Enclave Pvt Ltd 5,02,678 2414 3,53,678 16.98

reholdin 202

Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the current year

. %Change
No.of Sharesas | Change during | No.of Shares as| % of Total "

SEH ESCOEGnagt on01.04.2021 | theyear |on31.03.2022| shares tﬁ:::fr
1 PRITI ASUREKA 46,561 - 46,561 2.24% 0.00%
2 JAYANT GOENKA 15,448 - 15,448 0.74% 0.00%
3 USHA AGARWAL 4,000 - 4,000 0.19% 0.00%
4 PRASHANT GOENKA 2,655 - 2,655 0.13% 0.00%
5 MIDKOT INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED - Note - 1. s 7,51,321 7,51,321 36.07% 100.00%
6 KARAN BUSINESS PRIVATE LIMITED - Note - 1 3,50,800 (3,50,800} o 0.00% -100.00%
7 ZEN BUSINESS PRIVATE LIMITED - Note- 1 348,021 [3.48,021}) N 0.00% -100.00%
B PAN EMAMI COSMED LIMITED - Note - 1 52,500 {52,500} - 0.00% -100.00%
9 SNEHA GARDENS PRIVATE LIMITED - Note - 2 3,86,137 {3.86,137) 2 0.00% -100.00%
10 SURA] FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED - Note - 2 3 535,137 5,35,137 25.69% 100.00%
11 SNEHA ENCLAVE PRIVATE LIMITED 3,53,678 1,49,000 5,02,678 24.14% 42.13%

15,59,800 Z2,98,000 18,57,800 89.20%
Note

Karan Business Private limited , Zen Business Private Limited , PAN EMAMI Cosmed Private Limited amalgamated with Midkot [nvestments Private

Limited vide National Company Law Tribunal order dated 15.11.2021

2 Name of the company has changed from Sneha Gardens Private Limited to Suraj Finvest Private Limited with effect from 28th April'2021
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14 Other Equity

b)

Rs in Lakh
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2022 2021
Reserves & Surplus (6,485.93) (6,112.96)
Includes General Reserves and retained earnings.
Other Comprehensive Income 207.19 192,28
Includes re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit
plans and gain /loss on fair value of investments
Total (6,278.74) {5,920.68)
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Rs in Lakh
1 Financial Liahilities 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
| Borrowings
Term Loans
Secured
From Banks # 18,154.33 12,428.86
Less:- Current Maturities of Long term debt 6,424.23 11,730.30 2,599.71 9,829.15
Vehicle Loan # - 2.39
Less:- Current Maturities of Long term debt - - 1.66 0.73
Non Convertjble Debentures
Unsecured 11,236.31 11,226.06
Total-Borrowings-(i) © 2296661 21,055.94
L Liability ;
Long Term Maturities of Lease Obligation 1,889.61 2,775.99
Total-Lease Liability-(i)(a) 1,889.61 2,775.99
Total-Non Current- A 24.856.22 23,831.93
Borrowings
s Re le on De
anks
Cash Credit [ Note 15.1 ] 825.14 1,121.93
Working Capital Demand Loan [ Note 15.1 ] 4,400.00 5,225.14 4,200.00 5,321.93
Short Term Overdraft - 39,530.24
Unsecured #
Related Party 9,241.00 6.76
Other Parties - 8.99
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 6,424.23 2,601.36

[Refer Note 15]

Total-Borrowings-(i}

20,890.27

47,469.28

Current Maturities of Lease Obligation 745.29 1,031.54
Total-Lease Liability-(i)(a) 745.29 1,031.54
Total-Current-B 21,635.66 48,500.82
Total Borrowings (A+B) 46,491.88 72,332.75

# Refer Note 29

Bank-1 -Cash Credit And Working Capital Demand Loan are secured primarily by way of hypothecation on the
entire Current Assets of the company existing and future comprising of Stock-in-trade, receivahles, book debts
and other current assets. These loans are further secured Collateraly by way of Hypothecation / morigage on all
fixed assets (excluding vehicles ) of the company, both present and future.

Bank-2 -Subservient charge by way of Hypothecation over entire Current asset & moveable Fixed assets of the
company {(both present & future). Also, exclusive charge by way of pledge of shares of promoter shareholder and

also coprporate guarantee by a promoter shareholder.

[ Other Financial Liabilities 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Interest due to MSME 0.97 -

Deposit against rent 22.50 22.50
Total Non Current 2347 Z2.50
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Rs in Lakh

Provisions 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Provision for Emplovee Benefits
For Gratuity 143,04 102.87
For Leave 123.76 266.80 106.75 209.62
Other Provisions - 0.44
Total 266.80 210.06
Trade payables 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Total otflstandmg dues of Micro enterprises and small 43.99 21.91
enterprises
Total ot.:ttstandmg dues of cre?htors other than Micro 2,568.75 2,801.06
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 2,612.74 2,822.97

Trade Payables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2022

Outstanding for the following period from due
date of payments

Basticu e Less than 1 More than 3 Lot
1-2 years | 2-3years
year years
(i} MSME 41.95 1.67 0.35 0.03 43.99
(ii) Others 2,378.28 103.79 40.58 46.09 2,568.75
(iti) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
TOTAL 2,420.23 105.46 40,93 46,12 261274
Trade Payables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2021
Outstanding for the following period from due
Particulars LA teTob Ao o TOTAL
Less than 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
(i) MSME 12.85 8.93 0.01 012 21.91
(ii) Others 2,965.71 166.09 17.90 51.35 2,801.05
(#ii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
TOTAL 2,578.57 175.02 17.92 51.47 2,822.97
Other Financial Liabilities 313t March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 82,69 374.18
Other Payables
Employee Expense 292.43 203.82
Creditors for Capital Goods 53.47 28.99
Liabilities for Expenses 305.13 651.03 275.93 508.74
Total 733.72 882.92
Other current Habilities 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Statutory Liabilities 14.43 19.15
Other Payables 108.13
Advance from Customers 108.24 308.78
Total 122.67 436.06
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Rs in Lakh
Revenue from Operations 2021-22 2020-21
Sale of Products 49,403.93 37,089.59
Other Operating Revenues
Rent 55.01 38.65
Income From Store Displays 198.14 103.04
Franchisee Fees 14.12 0.50
Facility Management Tees 10.94 278.21 13.03 155.23
Total 49,682.14 37,244.82
Other Income 2021-22 2020-21
Interest Income
Interest on Loan given 5,331.90 3,749.35
Interest on Others
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost 71.56 67.97
Interest on Deposit 3.80 3.71
Interest on Income Tax refund 143 76.79 2.67 74.35
Dividend on Long Term Non-Trade Investment 0.80 0.80
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 44464 0.22
Insurance Claim 0.33 38.54
Compensation-Business Claim - 61.00
Liabilities Written Back 116.71 69.60
Miscellaneous Receipts 24.12 11.10
Total 5,995.29 4,004.96
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 2021-22 2020-21
(I) Opening Inventory 7,934.38 8,479.22
(I} Closing Inventory 6,983.96 7,972.10
{Increase)/Decrease 950.42 507.13
Employee Benefits Expense 2021-22 2020-21
Salaries and Wages 4,310.61 3,926.80
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 352.20 280.39
Staff Welfare Expense 121.03 110.65
Total 4,783.84 4,317.84
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Rs in Lakh
Finance Costs 2021-22 2020-21

Finance cost on Lease obligation 128.05 127.03
Interest Expense- Non Convertible Bonds 1,427.97 2,916.84
Interest to Banks , Working capital Loans , Interest on 5,069.19 3,115.50
Unsecured loans Ete.
Other Borrowing Cost 409.62 999.13

Total 7,034.83 7,158.50

Other Expenses 2021-22 2020-21

Power & Fuel 289.43 261.93
Rent & License Fees 447.89 83.23
Repairs to Building - 0.89
Maintenance Charges 629,18 693.54
Security Charges 54.34 5217
Insurance 27.01 17.96
Rates & Taxes 113.93 29.60
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 106.47 34.59
Commission 54.30 65.94
Professional & Legal Charges [Refer note - 27] 225.45 286.39
Internet and other communication expenses 68.95 75.36
Loss on sale / discard of Fixed Assets 9.76 5.79
Labour Charges - 1.14
Balances written off 581.50 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 555.32 448.76

Total 3,563.54 2,107.28
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Rs in Lakh
27 Payment To Auditors
Frdien i Year ended 31st Year ended 31st March
March 2022 2021

Audit Fees 12.98 12,98

Tax Audit Fees 0.96 0.96

Limited Review 1.50 1.50

Other Services 0.12 0.04

Total 15.56 15.48

28 Information for Earnings per share as per IND AS 33

Particulars As at 31st March 2022} As at 31st March 2021
Net Profit (372.95) (2,259.23)
Weighted average number of shares 20,82,707 20,82,707
Earnings per share - Basic & diluted (17.91) (108.48)
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Rs in Lakk
29 Details of Borrowings:-
Details of Term Loans from Bank
sl Type of Loan ROl as on 31- Security Amount outstanding | Amount outstanding
No. Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-22 | as on 31-Mar-21
1 Working 9.25% p.aon |Second charge over all existing primary &|Principal amount 2,440.17 2,662.00
Capital_term | oustanding INR |collateral securities including mortagages|Amortised cost as 2,410.99 2616.10
Loan- Under created in favour of the bank, subject to|per INDAS
ECLGS of NCGTC the subsisting charges created over Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
various primary and collateral securities, Date Amount Date Amount
i"CI‘fdi"g securities charged by third Repayable in 44 monthly Repayable in 48 monthly
parties, installments by 30th installments by 30th
November 2025 November 2025
2 Term Loan-  |1lyr MCLR+0.45%|Subservient charge by way  of|Principal amount 656.67 1,000.00
Rupee - At present-  |hypothecation over entire current asset{Amortised cost as 664.47 995.25
9.10% p.aon |and moveable fixed asset of the|per INDAS
outstanding INR [company {both present and future), The Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
same is further secured by pledge of Date Amount Date Amount
shares by a promoter shareholder
.Further secured by way of corporate Repayable in 8 quarterly Repayable in 8 quarterly
guarantee of a promoter shareholder installments by 1st March installments by 1st March
2024 2024
3 Term Loan- 15%p.aon First Charge by way of Hypothecation /| Principal amount 2,175.00 2,700.00
Rupee outstanding INR |mortgage on all the fixed assets of the[amertised cost as
company ( movable and immovable ), per inDAS 5.0 Q.0
bot!? preseaf mnd futurs exchuding Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
Vehicles .
Second charge by way of Hypothecation Date Antount Date Amount
on the entire current assets of the
company , existing and future ,
comprising , inter alia , of stocks of raw
material , work-in-progress , finished Repayable in 7 quarterly Repayable in 12 quarterly
goods , receivables , book debts and installments by 30th installments by 30th
other current assets . The same is further December 2023 December 2023
secured by pledge of shares by a
promoter shareholder
4 Term Loan- 15%p.aon  |1st Charge by way of Hypothecation /|Principal amount 4,550.00 6,125.00
Rupee outstanding INR [mortgage on :.=1fl the fixed assets|Amortised cost as 4,546.67 6,117.51
(movable and immovable ) of the|per INDAS
company, both present and future Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
excluding Vehicles. .The same is further Date Amount Date Amount
secured by pledge of shares by a
promoter shareholder.
Second charge by way of hypothecation
on the entire current assets of the
company , exiting and future Repayable in 6 quarterly Repavyable in 11 quarterly
comprising , inter alia , of stocks of raw installments by 28th installments by 28th
material , work-in-progress , finised September 2023 September 2023
goods , receivables , book debts and
other current assets .
5 Term Loan- 15%p.a on 1st Charge by way of Hypothecation /|Principal amount 8,499.70 -
Rupee outstanding INR [mortgage on all the fixed assets of the|Amortised cost as 8.357.40 )
company, both present and future|per INDAS iy
excluding Vehicles. .The same is further Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
secured by pledge of shares by a Date Amount Date Amount
promoter sharehalder. Repayable in 51 monthly
Second charge by way of hypothecation installments by 30th June
on the entire current assets of the 2023
company , exiting and future |,




Notes to Financial Statements

29 Details of Barrowlngs;-

Details of Term Loans from Bank

Rs In Lakk

sl. ROl as on 21-
RO s Mar-22

Security

Amount cutstanding
as on 31-Mar-22

Amount ocutstanding
as on 31-Mar-21

comprising , inter alia , of stocks of raw
material , work-In-progress , finised
goods , receivables , bock debts and
other current assets .

112.5 Bonds issued at face value of Rs

6 Rated unlisted | 12% interest p.2 Principal amount 11,250.00 11,250.00
Redeemable Non lcr each repayable by way of bullet Amortised A
Convertible repayment on the expiry of the term of o INIDS:S cust 85 11,236.31 11,226.06
DCebentures debenture . Secured by way of pfedge of B
shares by promoter shareholding and Repayment Schedula Repayment Schedule
also guaranteed by a promoter
shareholder. Also, hypothecation over a Date Amount | Date Amount
designated account.
10-Jul-23 11,250.00 10-Jul-23 11,250.00
Details of Vehicle Loan
Sl Uy e ROT as on 31- Security Amount cutstanding Arnount outstanding
No. | TP Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-22 as on 31-Mar-21
1  Vehicle Loan 9.50% pa. on SeeureSibydirstharelmethageioniihe Prmcrp'al amount - 2.32
monthly ) . Amaortised cost as
respective vehicles - 2.38

reducing basis

per [MDAS

Repayment Schedule

Repayment Schedule

Equated Monthiy Instalment
of Rs.15099/- each , upto

15/08/2022
Total Outstanding as at year end-Principal 29,581.54 23,738.39
Total OQutstanding as at year end-amortised cost as per INDAS 29,390.84 23,657.31
Current Maturities-Principal 6,424.23 2,601.36
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Notes to Financial Statements
Related Party Disclosure
Eey Managerial Personnel & Other Directors

HKey Managerial Fersonnel Description of Relationship
Mr Gautam Jata Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mr Sujay Chattaraj Wholetime Director
Ms Chadaravalli Srinivasa Bhatta Nalini Wholetime Director
Mr. Anurag Jatia Wholetime Director
Wr. Amit Agarwal [ joined w.e.f 02-05-2022 ] Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Akhilesh Agarwal [ resigned w.ef31-03-2022 ] Chief Financial Officer
Ms Amrita Bhattacharya Company Secretary
Mr. Dilip Kumar Poddar Director
Mr, Pawarn Kutnar Gupta Director
ther Dir
Mr, Debashish Bhaumik Independent Director
Mr, Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Director
Mrs Karabt Sengupta Independent Director
Mr. RK, Jatia
Mrs Vandana Jatia
Mrs Neata Agarwal

i t influence gver the
Midkot Investments Private Limited [ Holding Company is an associate of the Entity ]
Suraj Finvest Private Limited [ name changed from Sneha Gardens Pvt. Ltd. ] [ Holding Company is an associate of the Entity]
Sneha Enclave Private Limited [ Holding Cempany is an associate of the Entity |

a ith whi Jirler} a5 iransacti
AMRI Hospitals Ltd.
Archana pramoters & Developers Pvt Ltd
Bharu Vyapaar Pvt Ltd, [ amalgamated with Sneha Gardens Pvt Itd - Date - 02-02.2021]
Diwsakar Viniyeg Pvt Ltd [ amalgamated with Sneha Enclave Pvt ltd - Date - 02-02.2021]
Ematni Agrotech Lid.
Ernaml Capital Markets Ltd (Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd - Date - 15-11.2022}
Karan Business Pvt. Ltd {Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd - Date - 15-11-2022)
Ernami Realty Ltd,
Enami Art
Emarrd Ltd,
Eram Paper Mills Ltd.
Emarni Foundation
M Bhattacharyya & Co. Pyt Lid.
New Way constructions Itd (Merged with Midket [nvestment Pvt Ltd-Date-15-11.2022)
Niramay Distributors Pvt Lid.
Prabhakar Viniyog Pvt Ltd. [ amalgamated with Sneha Gardens Pvtltd-Date-02-02-2021]
PAN Emami Cosmed Ltd . (Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd-Date-15-11-20232)
Premier Ferro Alloys & Securities Ltd .
Ravira] Viniyog Pvt, Ltd, [ amalgamated with Sneha Gardens Pvt Itd - Date - 02-02.2021]
Shopper's city maintenance company Pyt itd
Seuth clty Projects kolkata Lid,
Suntrack Commerce Pvi itd [ amalgamated with Sneha Enclave Pvtltd - Date - ¢2-02.2021]
Suraj Viniyeg Private Limited [ amalgamated with Sneha Gardens Pvtltd - Date - 02-02-2021 ]

Shri Prashant Geenka
Nayee Disha Communications PvtItd
Shri Jayant Goenka
Smit Priti A Surekha
SGN Retail Pyt Ltd
of riy Tia Rs in Lakh
Description of relationship Natore of For the Financial year Amount outstanding** |
with party Transaction 2021-22 2020-21 ason 31-Mar-22 | ason 31-Mar-21
Kev Managerial Personnel Salary 262.54 239.46 - -
Perquisites 13.19 917 | o -
Sale of Fixed Assets 32.53 - - -
Rent Received 034 0.51 0.34 0.60
Loans & Advance Given 4391 “ 37.51 -
Other Directors Sitting fees 230 247 = =
Salary 11.29 15.26 - -
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel |Perauisites 8.61 0.83 o =
Retainership 37.80 20.30 = =
Other Entities Sale of Goods 8,286.06 5,789.14 1,195.71 1,30237
Display Charges 19.64 23.77 = =
Rent Received 0.40 1.61 = 051
Ambulance Hire Charges 616 642 - E
Reimbursement of exp-Income 3.13 407 = =
Purchase of Assets 30.00 - @ =
Purchase of Goods 7,495.85 4,865.20 (93.87) {17.50)
Guarantee Commission Faid 117.75 164.65 (40.38) {84.62)
Interest on Loan taken 2,419.89 901,93 (82.69) (267.88)
Rent & maintenance paid 304.90 212.70 (B.57} {22.41)
Royalty 10.00 10.00 - o
Electricity Charges 25.76 13.24 (6.42} (2.11)
Advt & Sales promotipn 2.16 - 7.89 -
Interest on Loan Given, 335.62 2,673.20 - 83.77
Advance/Depaosit given 325.00 100.00 - 120.17
Reimursment of exp 268.61 179 - (0.16)
Loan Given 4,065.00 22,776.00 69.25 8,455.47
Loan Given refunded 1Z,462.00 49,294.11 - -
Loan Taken 51,026.00 96,730.00 £9,241.00) -
Lean Taken refund back 41,785.00 97,364.05 - -

**. Figures in brackets denote Credit Balance
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Notes to Financial Statements

Rsin Lakh

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
Therefore, Net Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 3293.43 lakhs (P.Y.- Rs.3216.70 lakh) has been recognised till date

in the accounts in compliance with IND AS 12 on" Income Taxes"

Contingent Liabiliti ents ;-

Co Liabiliti

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Bank Guarantees 403.04 297.84

Contingent Liability disclosed above represents possible obligations where the possibility of cash cutflow

to settle the obligation is remote .
ommi

Estimated amount of Commitment not provided . - Rs. Nil

s iv ting Lease

The company has given assets under non-cancellable operating lease . The total lease rent received on the

same is Rs 0.40 Lakh- [ P.Y - Rs 0.40 Lakh |

The minimum future lease rentals receivable in respect of non-cancellable lease as at 31-March-22 are as

under:

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Lease contributions for the year 0.40 0.40
Minimum Lease payment contributions
-Not later than one Year 0.40 0.40
-Later than one year but not later than five years 2.00 2.00
-Later than 5 years 13.60 14.00

Assets taken on Operating Lease

The company has taken shops on rent.The total minimum lease payments and present value of minimum

lease payments are as follows:-

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Particulars Minimum Lease Pr'e s'ent L Minimum Pr_es.ent valugiof
payments Minimum lease lease GmiEnEs Minimum lease
payments payments
-Not later than one Year 1,026.83 745.29 1,648.60 1,031.54
-Later than 1 Year 2,543.95 1,889.61 3,378.59 2,776.00

The difference between minimum lease payments and the present value of minimum lease payments of Rs. 935.88 lakh (P.Y-

Rs 1219.65 lakh) represents interest not due .
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35 Deflped benefitplan
351 Defued bepefitclan (Cratuit

Rs. In Lakh

play

|G ratulty: The Corapany has a defined Gratuity Plan for 1ts

. Every

who has

fve years or more of

i [service gets a grabuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawm salary) for each completed year of service. The Scheme is
\funded with an {nsurance campany in the form of quailfying Insurance pollcy.

e = Year ended 315t March | Year ended 325t March
Particul 022
1 | Grammity Gratutey
- Funded Finded
A |C '3
1 lCurr:nt Service Cast 7094 58.68
2 | Pastservice Cost = 5
2 |Less/{Gain} on settlement - -
4 | Netinterestincome/(cost) on the net defined benefit liablity {Asset) L0 181
5 |Total recogn intha of Proflt & Lass 78.04 60.49
8 T ) fn bak heetas zt 31st March
2022
1 |Presentvalue of Defined Benefit Oblipation 57Z.1T 52075
2 Fairvalue of plan assets 42907 417,88
3 | Funded Starus [Surolus/Tdefick? {143.04) {10287)
4 | Neiasset/(ability) recognlsed lo bafance sheet {143.04) (102.87)
I Change in Defined Benefit D¥ligaton during the year ended 31st
March 2022
1 |Presentvalue of DBO at besinning of neriod 520.75 487,02
2 [CurrentService Cost 7094 5888
3 |Ipterest Cost 35.93 3214 |
4 | Re-measurement for actuariall(eatn) floss arising fram - B
-Change in deogravhic assumytons 2 =
~Change in financial assumptons 26.91) 39.68
| Experience varfation {1.e Actual experfetice vs assumptions) [9'2111 [73.97]
5 | PestService cost = -
6 |Benefits Paid [19.38} £23.02)
7 |Acauislden adlustnent =
B |Effert of business combinztions or disposals o
9 Fressatvalue of DBO at the end of perlod 572.11 520.73
D Change in Fair Valee of Assets
1 Fairvalue of Planned assets at beginning of period 417.86 462,59
2 Investruentincome 23.83 3053
3 |Emplover's contrigution 0.93 -
4 |Benefits pald 11938) {23021
3 Return on plan assets, excluding amotnit recogalsed In net Interest 0.80 1527
expense
& | Acouiston adiustmznt {67.51]
7 | Fairvalue of Plan assets at end of the perfod 429.04 417.86
E | Dther Comprehensive Income
1 | Actuarial {gains]/Losees
-Changes in demogranhic assumptions - =
—Changes In financtal assumotions §2651) 39.68
-Experience variance {i.e Actual experience vsassumptions) 2.21)| (73.97)
2 :.:nm:n planassets, excluding amount recognised in et [nterest ©s0) f 527
3 Cmnpunenrs)uﬁl!eﬁner] ‘beneflt easts recognised In other @694 | 49.55)
| ncome |
H | TheMajor categories of plan 2¢vets as a % of total plan assets AsatIfstMarch 2022 | Asat3ist MarchZ021
Fund managed by Insurer, 100% | 10H0%
1H | Assmptions Asat 2lstMarch 2027 | Asat 31stMarch 2021
| Financial sssumptons | |
| Discount rate % 7.30% | 690%
Rate ofincrease in salaries 9% pa 9% s
Demegraphic assumpHons |
Mortallty rate {$ of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
Normal retirement age S5Byears 58 years
Auvtritdor: rates, based onage{% p.a) for all ages | 2% pal 2% pa
i |
ix | Sensitivlty analyzis —1

actuarial for the

I ]

{an of the defined beneflt obligation are discount rate expected salary
increase and merwlity . The sensitivity analysis below bave been determined based on reasopable possible changes of the!
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting perdad , while helding all other assumptions constant The resulis of|
|

| sensitivity analysts {5 given balaw:-

‘ Revesue from opreration | Asat 3IstMarch202Z = Asat3istMarch 2021 |
Defined benefit shliigation base | 57211 . 52075 |
Asat3istMarch202Z = Asat3istMarch2021 |
Particulars Decrcast _Increase Increase |
@ |Discountrate (-7 +1%) 54329 51259 589.44 46345
{9 change compared to base dute to sensitivity 1245450 -10.40% 13.19% | -10.99%
b |Salary growthrate -/ +1%) 51433 6398 46474 585.6|
%% chanpe compared to base due to sensitivity) 1 -10.10% 11.893% ~10.75% 12.45% |

& |Atzition rate -/ +50%) | 58166 563.74 522.09 5108
(% change compared to base due to sensitdviny) 167% ~LA46% 2.18%. -1.90%
d | Mortality rate {-/ +10%) 573.26 570.97 52215 51937
% chanpe compared to hase due to sensitivity) | 0.20% -0.20% | 0.27%] 0.26% )

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligation as Itis
unlliely that the change {n assumptions would eccur in isalation of one anothar 2s some of the assumptions may be correlated .

¥  Effect of plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows

4)  Punding arrargements and funding policy
The company has purchased an Insurance policy %o provide for payment of gramity 1o the employees . Every year , the
Insureace company carries out a fundlng valiation based on the latast emplyee date provided by the Company. Any deficit in
the assets arising as a reult of such valuation is funded by the company
)  Expected contibution during the next annual yeporting peried
Partoulars | Asat31stMarch2022 | Asataist Marck 2071 |
|'ﬂm Company's bestastimate of Conrtbution during the nextyear | 21656 16809
©)  Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligation
Particulars | AssE3%stMarch202Z | Asat3istMarch2021 |
|W=|ghbed average duration (based on d cash flows) ] 13 years : 13 yrars
[Rapected cash fows over the next years | ASSEEISMArchZOZE | Asar3istMarch202i |
| fyahued on basis
| Lyear 5557 | 32.29
Zte 5 years 12045 11968
610 10 years 19589 177.45
| More than 10 years 1,266.16 | 1,126.35




35 Defined bepefitplan
352 Defined benefit plan -Leave

[ Year ented 31t Mareh | Year ended 315t March

Z022 2021
Particnlars
Leave encashment Leave encashntent
A |G ts of Empls
1 |Current Service Cost 25.36 17.97
2 |Past service Cost - -
3  |Less/(Galn) an setiement -
4 | Netinterest Income/(cost) on the net defined henefit liability (Asset) 7.38 7.57
5 |change in demographic assumptions
6 | Actuarial {gzins)/ Losses due to Change in financlal assumption (6.24) 952
7 |Actuarial (gains)/ Losses due te Change in experience variance 3136 (338)
f |Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 57.66 3168
B Net asset/(liabillty) recognised in balance sheet as at 315t March
2022
1 |Presentvalue of Defined Benefit Obligation 123.76 10675
2 |Fair value of plan assets - -
3 |Funded Status [Surplus/{deficit)? [123.76) [106.75)
4 | Net asset/{ltability) recognised in balance sheet (123.76) [106.75)
¢ Change in Deflned Benefit Gbligation during the year ended 31st
March 2022
1 |Present value of DBO at beginning of period 106.75 114.50
2 |Current Service Cost 2536 17.97
3 |Interest Cost 737 7.56
4  |Re-measurement (or actuarizl}{gain)/loss arlsing from = =
-Change In demographic assumptions - -
-Change In finandal assumptons [5.44) 852
-Experience variation (Le Actual experioence vs assumptions) 3136 {3.38)
5 |PastService cost - -
6 |Benefits Paid (40.64) (39.42)
7 |Acquisitior adjustment -
8 |Effect of business combinations or disposals -
9  |Presentvalue of DBO at the end of period 123.76 106.75
Id |Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 |Fair value of Plamed assets at beglnning of perind - -
Z |Investmentincome - -
¥ |Emplover’s contribution 40.64 39.42
4 |Benefits pald (40.64) (39.42)
5 Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest A B
exXpense
6 |Acquistion adiustnent
7  |Pair value of Plan assets at end of the period - -
ii | The Major categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets Asat31st March 2022 | Asat3%stMarch 2021
Fund mapaged by insurer KA NA
iii |Assumplions Axat 31stMarch 2022 | Asat31stMarch 2021
Financial assumptions
Discount rate % 7.30% 6.50% p.a
Rate of Increase In salaries 9% p.a. 9% p.a.
Demographle assumptions
Mortality rate (% of [ALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
Normal retirement age 58years 5B years
Attriticn rates, based on age(% p.a) for all ages 2% pa 2% p.a;
iv | Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate expected salary
increase and mortality . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonablepossible changes of the
assumptlons croiring at the end of the reperting pericd , while holding all other assumptons constant The results of
sensltivity analysis is given below:-
Revenue from operation Asat31stMarch Z022 | Asat3isiMarch Z0Z1 II
Defined benefit obligation base 123.76 106.75|
AsatIistMarch 2022 | Asat3istMarch 2021
Particolars Decrease  Incresse | Dedrease  Increase
a |Discount rate (-/ +19) 140.84 109.61 12196 94,19
(% change compared to base due to 2] 13.80% -11.43% 14.25% -11.76%
b [Salary growth rate {-/ +1%4) 108,96 14131 93,69 122.29
(% change compared to base due to b i) -11.95% | 14.19% -12.23% 14.56%
c |Attrition rate (-/ +5094) 126.28 121.57 109.49 10439
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity] 2.04% -1.76% 2.57% | -2.21%
d [Mortzlity rate [/ +10%) 124.07 123.45 107,09 10641
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.25% -0.25% 0.32% -0.31%
The sensitvity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumpticns would occur in isolation of one ancther as some of the assumptions may be correfated
v Effect of plan on Entiky's Future Cash Flows
a) Maturity profile of Defined beneft obligati

Particulars | As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Welghted averzge duration ( based on discounted cash flows) | 13 Years 13 Years
5:2::]”‘" cash flows over the next years (valued on undiscounted | ooy ayce March 2022 | Asat3istMarch 2021
1year 6,28 6.10
Zto S years 22.31 1737
6o 10 years 3%.11 33.37
More than 10 years 32265 26451
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36 Fair Value Measurement

k)

a) Financial Instruments by category Rsin Lakh
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amortised Cost ] FYTOCI At Cost Amortised Cost | FVTOCI | At Cost
Einancial Assets
Investment in Equity shares (Quoted} - 44,98 - - 48.90 -
Investment in Equity shares (Unquoted) - 215,90 - - 225,57 -
Investment in Equity shares [Ungucted)-Deemed cost - - - - - -
Investment in Preference Shares (Unguoted) 16.33 - - 14.84 - -
Investment in Debentures (Unguoted)} 425.00 - - . - -
Trade Receivables 4,969.37 - - 377146 - -
Loans and Advances 19.431.35 - - 44,047.69 - -
Other Financial Assets 1,046.79 - n 1,229.51 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 581.34 - - 506.42 - -
Borrowings(including interest accrued) 43,939.68 - - 68,890.42 - =
Trade Payables 2,612.74 - - 2,823.00 - -
Fair Value Hierarchy
Particulars L Asat Asat
Hierarchy

Firancial Assets 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Investment in Equity Share{Quoted) Level 1 4498 | 48,90

Investment in Equity Share{Unquoted} Level 2 215.90 22557

(g

The fair value of financlal assets & liabilities is classified in various fair value hierarchy based on following three levels:-

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than guoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {L.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
market approach and valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates,

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidated sale,

Based on the evaluation of Trade Receivables, allowances are considered to account for the expected losses of these receivables. As at end
of each reporting year, the carrying amount of such receivables , net of allowances (if any) , are not materially different from their
calenlated Fair values.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

When the fair value of unquoted instruments cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, the group carries such instruments at cost less
impairment, if applicable.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:

The Company uses Discounted Cash Flow Valuation Technique which involves determination of present value of expected receipt
discounted using appropriate discounting rate.

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Carying Value | Fair Value Carying Value | Fair Value |

Financial Assets
[nvestment in Preference Shares (Unquoted) 16.33 16.33 14.84 14.84
Investment in Debentures (Unguoted) 425.00 425.00 - -
Security Deposit 1,036.13 1,036.13 1,005.63 1,005.63
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings(including interest accrued) 43,939.68 43,939.68 68,890.42 68,890.42

The Management has assessed that the Fair Value of other financial assets and liabilities (fixed depaosits, short term loans and advances
and other current lizbilities) approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short term nature of these instruments. Fair value of
non-current financial instruments (ether than above) approximates to their carrying value which is hased on effective interest rate.
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(a)

(B)

Notes to Financial Statements
Rs. in Lakh

Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company, the company has risk management policies as described below

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / failure by the counterparty to meet financial
obligations as per the terms of contract. The company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash
eguivalents, financial guarantees. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration
of credit risks. Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode are made after judging
credit worthiness of the customers or advance payment . The history of defaults has been minimal and outstanding
receivables are regularly monitored. For credit risk on the loans to parties, the company is not expecting any
material risk on account of non-performance by any of the parties.The company creates allowances for all
unsecured receivables and advances based on lifetime expected credit loss .

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company fails to honour its financial obligations in accordance with terms of
contract, Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and
to close out market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cash
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy
invelves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance
sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The Company does not have any derivative financial liability.The following are the remaining contractual maturities
of non derivative financial liabilities at the reporting period:

Year ended 31.3.2022

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 years | More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 6,424.23 37,432.76 - 43,856.99
Interest on borrowings 82.69 - . 82.69
Trade Payables 2,612.74 - - 2,612.74
Employee Benefits Payable 29243 : - 292.43
Other Liabilities 357.72 - - 357.72
Total 9,769.81 37,432.76 - 47,202.57
Year ended 31.3.2021

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 years | More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 2,601.36 65,923.87 - 68,525.23
Interest on borrowings 374.18 - - 374.18
Trade Payables 2,822.97 - - 2,822.97
Employee Benefits Payable 203.82 - - 203.82
Other Liabilities 304.92 - - 304.92
Total 6,307.25 65,923.87 - 72,231.12




{ €} Marketrisk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

There is no transaction which will result in foreign currency exposure during the year.
Foreign Currency paid for the year w.r.t imports amounts to Rs. 17.08 lacs (PY: Rs.14.21 Lacs), and w.r.t travelling
amounts to Rs. NIL (PY:: Rs.NIL).

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term borrowings with variable rates, which
expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interestrates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables remaining constant, the company's profit before tax is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Rsin lakh
. Increzfse/ . | Effect on Profit
Particulars decrease in Basis
. before tax
points
31.03.2022 +0.50 219.70
-0.50 (219.70)
31.03.2021 +0.50 (344.45)
-0.50 344.45

(iii) Price risk

The company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held - both quoted and unquoted
and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss. The
company is not expecting high risk exposure from its investment in securities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Since the company operates only in one segment i.e retailing and also in one country i.e India , hence
information on segment reporting with respect to operating and geographical segment is not provided .

The Company has accessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amount of Receivables, Inventories, Investments and other assets/ liabilities. Based on the internal and
external sources of information, the Company is of the view that the impact of COVID-19 is not material. Due to the
nature of pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties in
future periods, if any.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary .

Significant accounting polices 1
The accompanying netes are an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our attached report of even date

For Agrawal Tondon & Co. Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director
FRN:-329088E DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

Amit Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Amrita Bhattacharya
Company Secretary
Radhakrishan Tondon Membership No.- A53270
Partner
Membership NO. 060534

Dated : 23-08-2022
Place : Kolkata
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